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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the second annual report since the public listing
of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2016.

This has been an unusual year characterised by market swings.
Amidst a slowdown in economic growth, weaker market
sentiment and the Legislative Council filibusters affecting
major infrastructure projects, we had successfully secured
three new projects in mid-2015 before the winter in the
construction industry brought severe cut-throat competition
among the market players. These new projects are the
Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai
Sin District, the Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control
Point and the Hospital Expansion project. Of these, the
Hospital Expansion project has marked a new milestone in our
history because Sam Woo Construction is the main contractor
for this project for the foundation and associated works with
an aggregate contract value of over HK$1.7 billion. We see
this project as a symbol of customers’ trust in Sam Woo
Construction as a specialist in foundation works and ancillary
services established in Hong Kong for more than 20 years with
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development projects. The commitment of our strong
management team and dedicated professionals to provide
quality work and services to our customers has played a vital
role in building up the Group’s reputation for excellence in
expertise and experience over the years.
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The Policy Address 2016 has re-affirmed the government’s
development plan, including housing supply targets, urban
renewal, expansion of the mass transit railway network, cross
boundary infrastructure and so on. The policy of strengthening
economic integration of Hong Kong, Zhuhai and Macau,
closer connections with the national transportation network
and meeting the strong demand for housing, public facilities
and the transportation network arising from the increasing
population in Hong Kong can undoubtedly provide support for
the sustainable development of our society. A large number
of construction projects are expected to be launched in the
coming 10 years. The related investment involving billions
of dollars requires substantial foundation works that present
tremendous opportunities for the Group.

However, the construction market has been hard-hit by the
prolonged debates in the Legislative Council during the year
which led to a large backlog in the approval of funding for
public works. The substantially reduced number of contracts
open for tendering in the market has led to more severe
competition especially in the past few months as some market
players were desperate to fill their order book due to great
pressure resulting from excess manpower and capacity. The
contract prices were suppressed to a cut-throat level in a
number of tenders for 2016. Though it was disappointing
that we did not win a new contract in 2016 under the ultra-
competitive conditions, we are fortunate to have been working
on three profitable projects already on hand.

We expect that the contract prices are likely to remain under
pressure during the next half year. Yet, the Airport Third
Runway Program is currently an important focus and the
mobilising of capacity towards this project with desirable
outlook is currently on track. Our strategy is to conserve
our construction and financial capabilities in order to grab
the opportunities in the new runway and the other deferred
projects when they eventually kick off.

ZZ—AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Chairman’s Statement

EREE

2016F i mMEERBMNNERGSE - &
REEHERSR TREZ BEHTH
BRABM LB RERERS < I MARE
B BB ZEEE - BIENERR
R HEEEXBERTFETNER AR
RENEBACDERMEZNFE - AHf
iR BEBHEG - EEYBE YA
ENARERE  BIIARTFEAEAE
BEIER LK - FaUS REBIATHEITME
FAREHBRTRETAREUMNMETE 5
AEBEHBERRNNEE -

A FA - EERAERBHEETE
Riiwm o SAMAETRBRERSL
BEMSAZZE - ARETHBIENE
FEERERD  HEEBHR - MER
EROHEAZBLERE  FHRAEEY
AFBRMECRHMEFTRKONERS - &
NEBMIREY - 2016F ZHBEZNAH
BRZE  BREFRNEIEKTE - BEE
KR FIRE - AREHEN2016FE KR
BHAR AMF LE=BAF HEERKIE
BHEEBEL -

BB ARERETHFERES
o A MISE=BAECKRER
£H - EERALERAZNRAGEEMNS
AIHIRIR B o ANSR B A SR B 2 A FF IR SR AT
MARE S - 1R R 8 A M H A
HHMNIBRESK EBRMAHEROKE -

[




Chairman’s Statement

EFRERE

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about
the prospects of the construction market. As one of the most
dependable contractors in the foundation segment with an
extensive range of specialised machinery and equipment,
an experienced management team and decades of valuable
project experience, we are fully confident about the Group’s
future development.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
and appreciation to my fellow Board members, management
team, staff members, suppliers, subcontractors, other
business partners and, most importantly, our shareholders and
customers for their support. The Group resolves to pursue
stronger development with a view to maximise returns to its
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK1.75
cents per share.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board is pleased to present the annual results of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “Year”/“2016”), together
with comparative figures for the previous year ended 31 March
2015 (the “Previous Year”/“2015").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Major Projects for the Year

Although the Legislative Council filibustering had caused
delay in the grant of funding approval for certain public works
and a number of public infrastructure projects tendering in
Hong Kong has been slowing down, the Group successfully
secured three new contracts in the first half of the Year in both
public and private sectors, namely the Proposed Commercial/
Residential Development in Wong Tai Sin District, the Liantang/
Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point and the Hospital
Expansion project. The estimated aggregate value of the
Group’s contracts on hand yet to be completed was about
HK$1,650 million as at 31 March 2016.

The Group’s annual revenue attributable to projects in Hong

Kong and Macau increased to HK$1,061 million in the Year
(2015: HK$851 million), representing a growth of 25%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED M

As at Estimated
31 March 2016 Expected remaining
Completion completion contract
status date value
R201653A31H EH fhateR T
52 A B iR 3 5 A B aRNE
(note 1) (HKS$)
(PR EE1T) (%)
Composite Development Project, Macau Completed - -
EPFEEERIER BRI
Proposed Commercial/Residential
Development in Wong Tai Sin District Around 1/3  To be determined 100 million
BEANUEFEERIEER N=pz— (note 2) 118
BT (MeE2)
Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai
Boundary Control Point Around 1/3 2016/17 300 million
B/ AEEORER HN=pz— 2016/17F [Z 31E
Hospital Expansion Around 1/10 2019 1,250 million
B #EEIE R HNt+nz— 20194 12.5(8
Note 1: The above remaining contract values were determined with MieE1: A EBTALNENSRBRE AN

reference to internal estimates based on currently available
information, and may be subsequently revised.

Note 2: As the employer has to re-design part of the works, the BfsE2 -

expected completion date has yet to be determined.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Composite Development Project, Macau

The Composite Development Project in Macau is the biggest
completed project to date on the Group’s record in terms of
contract value. About 60% of the Group’s revenue for the Year
were attributable to this private residential development project.

The Group was awarded the project in early 2014, and
commenced foundation piling works at the end of 2014 after
the client finished obtaining the relevant government permits
and finalised the design plans. This project proceeded at full
steam in mid- 2015 and was completed by the end of 2015.
After that, the Group had all the equipment used in Macau
moved back to Hong Kong.

The original contract amount of this project was approximately
HK$460 million. Additional works were subsequently included
in the contract which brought the total contribution of the
project to the Group’s revenue to over HK$720 million in
aggregate in the Year and the Previous Year. In terms of profit
margin, residential developers were typically more cautious in
budgeting, which were different from the developers of previous
commercial projects Hotel Tower and Hotel Casino in Macau
in the previous two years who had very tight schedules to
work with and hence were willing to pay more. In addition, the
subsequently added works, including certain non-bored piles
works, were subcontracted by the Group in order to maintain
the work efficiency and flexibility in resources deployment.
Therefore, compared with the Macau projects completed by
the Group in 2013/14 and 2014/15, this project had lower
price rates and higher subcontracting costs. However, with
its considerable scale taken into account, the project still
contributed significantly to the Group’s revenue and profit.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWED

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai
Sin District

This is the second time the Group works with this private
developer, the first time being on a bored pile and pre-
drilled socket piling works project which was completed in
2012/2018. In April 2015, the Group was awarded the new
contract for the installation of lateral support works for the
Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai
Sin. The contract is valued at approximately HK$320 million
(including contingent payment and/or provisional sum), of
which the first phase is valued at an estimated HK$140 million.
However, certain technical complications in the first phase
of the project had commanded the employer to re-design
and re-schedule part of the works, as a result, the expected
completion date of the project has yet to be determined.

As at 31 March 2016, around one-third of the first phase
of installation of lateral support works for the project had
been completed. Due to the extension of project period, the
management expects the Group to incur higher overhead for
the project costs and that the remaining two-third of the works
would be primarily subcontracted. With maximising efficiency in
mind, the management intends to direct the Group’s resources
onto the other two major bored pile projects to be discussed
below.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point

The Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point is part
of the Hong Kong boundary crossing facilities managed by the
Civil Engineering and Development Department. The Group
entered into a pre-bid agreement in relation to the bored piling
subcontractor works with the main contractor at the time of
the tender in 2013. The Legislative Council finally approved
the project funding in June 2015 and the relevant contracts
were subsequently awarded. However, subsequent changes
were made to the design plans while the Group had already
started working on the construction sites. These affected the
efficiency of the Group’s resources deployed to the project and
management of the project budget.

Based on the latest design, the value of this contract is
estimated at about HK$470 million. As at 31 March 2016,
around one-third of the works for this project had been
completed and it contributed to around 15% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year. The project is expected to be completed
within the coming financial year.

Hospital Expansion

In July 2015, the Group was awarded the main contract of the
foundation and associated works of United Christian Hospital
by the Hospital Authority. This contract is valued at HK$1,780
million, and after deducting all contingent and/or provisional
sums, the actual revenue is estimated at approximately
HK$1,400 million. This will be a new record high for the Group.

More than half of the project value is for the demolition of
the existing buildings, site formation and road reconstruction
to prepare for expansion of the hospital. Construction of the
foundation piles accounts for the remaining contract value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWED

As at 31 March 2016, around one-tenth of the project
which comprised primarily preparatory work of the project
and demolition of existing buildings was completed and it
contributed around 15% of the Group’s total revenue for the
Year. The Hospital Expansion project will last around four years
and is expected to be completed in 2019.

Outlook

The delay of and the uncertainties surrounding certain public
works as a result of the recent Legislative Council filibustering
in funding approval have already caused challenges for the
construction industry. The suppressed market demand has
forced players to start competing fiercely on price in the
past few months. The management expects this situation to
continue for a short period of time until there are concrete
roll-out plans for some of those iconic infrastructure projects
like the Airport Third Runway Program and the development
projects set out below.

The major commercial and public infrastructure projects being
planned will require a large fleet and broad range of machinery
and equipment, as well as the support of professional
operational skills and management experience. Since the
number of foundation specialist builders in the market with
required experience in taking up projects of such scale is
limited, as long as the tenders for planned projects are called
as expected, the Group is confident of its prospects in bidding
for new projects in the second half of the coming financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Housing and Community Facilities

The Hospital Expansion project is of great significance to the
Group. The approval of funding for the hospital project, a
major social and livelihood facility, by the Legislative Council is
a positive sign for other public sector projects in the pipeline.
The government stated in the 2015/16 Budget its intention
to launch a number of hospital projects to meet the long-
term demand for medical services by the community. The total
construction cost of the projects launched and being planned
are expected to exceed HK$80 billion. The market is also
anticipating new project tenders in relation to the “Energizing
Kowloon East” in coming months. Also, as part of the 570,000
square feet urban renewal plan of Kwun Tong and Kowloon
City, the Kai Tak Development Plan includes construction of
a large number of facilities for government agencies and the
community, as well as residential and commercial buildings.
Apart from buildings, the plan also involves the construction
of a highway connecting West Kowloon and Tseung Kwan O.
The “Energizing Kowloon East” is expected to be the largest
reconstruction project ever in Hong Kong, which will provide
a tremendous number of public and private housing units, all
requiring heavy foundations.

The government has announced its long-term housing strategy
targeting to add 480,000 units within 10 years beginning
from 2015/16. This is favorable for the Group. According to
the government’s five-year land development plan, 150 land
parcels would be converted to use for housing development.

Development of Infrastructure and a New Hub

When the Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link and the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macau Bridge were completed, Lantau Island would
transform into a transportation hub in the Pearl River Delta
and create a new centre of gravity for Hong Kong’s economy.
Macau is also planning to tap the opportunities arising as a
result of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge connecting the
Pearl River Delta with the Western Corridor, as evidenced by
her new reclamation projects aiming at enhancing both her
commercial and residential development. Other major projects
included the third runway at Chek Lap Kok airport, the new
town at Hung Shui Kiu and other reclamation works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEBNWED

The aforementioned plans and projects are expected to
support demand for the construction industry in the medium
term. Steadfast in its mission of building “Tomorrow’s
Foundation”, Sam Woo Construction Group has been involved
in various iconic projects, including the marine foundation
works of the north-south runway at Hong Kong International
Airport, the Blue Bale Hai Tsing Yi Bridge, and the construction
of mass transit railways (the East Rail, West Rail, Ma On Shan
Rail and the High Speed Rail). We are looking forward to
playing a part in the new chapter of Hong Kong’s development
and collaborating with other enterprises to build Hong Kong’s
future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,061 million for the
Year, representing an approximately 25% increase compared
with the Previous Year. The major projects as discussed in the
Business Review above, namely the Composite Development
Project, Macau, Proposed Commercial/Residential
Development in Wong Tai Sin District, Liantang/Heung
Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point, and Hospital Expansion,
contributed more than 90% of the Group’s revenue for the Year.
The remaining was attributable to the Hong Kong Boundary
Crossing Facilities project completed in the first quarter of the
Year and finalisation of the final accounts of a few projects
which contract works were completed in the previous financial
years.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit was approximately HK$210 million for the Year,
down by approximately 31% compared with the Previous Year.
Gross profit margin was approximately 20% which was lower
than the 36% in the Previous Year. The management submitted
that the cost structure of the major projects undertaken
during the Year were different from those of the projects
in the Previous Year. As discussed in the Business Review
above, despite that the average contract size of the recently
awarded projects was bigger, the portion of non-bored pile
works subcontracted had increased and the margin of these
subcontracting works was relatively thin. As a result of the
above, the Group’s overall profit margin was squeezed.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Secondly, the major projects undertaken during the Year
required a significant amount of preliminary and ancillary
works which will take about a year-and-a-half to four years to
complete and on average longer than those of the projects in
the Previous Year. Thus, project overhead costs were expected
to increase proportionally.

Thirdly, contract price is determined by market bids that reflect
supply and demand, which in turn depend on the volume of
construction works of prevailing public and private market
tenders, the amount of contracts on hand of the contractors,
project programme timelines and other factors. The filibustering
in the Legislative Council, however, has caused delays in
funding approval for public works and infrastructure projects,
resulting in a shortage of demand in the construction market.
With fewer tenders to bid for, competition has become more
intense for the industry and as such contract prices have been
under pressure.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased 34% to HK$37 million
compared with the Previous Year (2015: HK$55 million). In the
Previous Year, the professional fees included an expense of
HK$12 million related to the Company’s initial public offering
of shares, as well as the costs and provision of HK$12
million including consultancy fees and expenses relating to
litigation and arbitration. During the Year, the litigations were
concluded and the litigation cost of about HK$3 million were
recovered and written back together with the related provision
accordingly. If legal and professional fees were excluded in
both years, the administrative expenses would have increased
for about 10% mainly due to the increase in salaries and office
rental expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE WD

Finance Cost

Finance cost for the Year was approximately HK$12
million (2015: HK$14 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 19% compared to the Previous Year. This is
mainly due to the interest saving attributable to the use of part
of the proceeds from the listing and placing shares in July 2015
as the Group’s working capital, thus reducing those short-term
bank borrowings with higher interest rates. Meanwhile, finance
income increased mainly because the listing proceeds yet to be
used were placed to bank deposits for interest income.

Taxation

The effective income tax rate for the Year was about 8%
(2015: 9%). The lower effective tax rate was resulted mainly
because (i) about 60% of the Group’s construction revenue
was generated from the Macau project during the Year and the
statutory tax rate there was lower than in Hong Kong; and (i)
there was rental income earned by subsidiaries in Hong Kong
in relation to the leasing of machinery and equipment for use
in Macau projects which was regarded as offshore income and
therefore not subjected to taxation in Hong Kong and Macau.
Details can be referred to in the prospectus of the Company
dated 29 September 2014.

Profit and Net Profit Margin

As a result, the Group’s profit after tax was approximately
HK$153 million (2015: HK$219 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 30%. Net profit margin was
14% (2015: 26%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internally-generated resources, long-term bank loans and
finance leases. Upon our listing, the capital contribution from
the Company’s shareholders became an additional source of
finance. During the Year, the Group invested approximately
HK$129 million in expansion of its machinery and equipment.
In May 2015, in response to the expected increase in project
needs, the Group placed a HK$100 million purchase order for
machinery and equipment with an European manufacturer. All
of them had been delivered and paid for during the Year. As at
31 March 2016, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
the purchase of machinery and equipment was HK$4 million
(2015: HK$16 million).

During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-
term borrowings. During the Year, the Group generated from
operating activities a net cash inflow of approximately HK$190
million (2015: HK$147 million). That together with short-term
bank loans and overdrafts available, the Group had been
financially sound in its daily operations throughout the Year.

Capital Financing and the Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately HK$117
million (after deducting underwriting fees, commissions and
expenses), of which (i) approximately HK$53 million was
applied in acquiring machinery and equipment; and (ii) HK$12
million was applied as working capital during the Year, in
accordance with the intended use. The remaining net proceeds
of approximately HK$52 million from the IPO as at 31 March
2016 is intended for financing acquisition of machinery and
equipment in the future.
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BEEBNWED

In July 2015, the Company placed 20,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 nominal value, raising approximately HK$58 million
for working capital purposes, and the entire amount had been
used during the Year, mainly for payments of contract costs.

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had a total cash and
bank balances of approximately HK$221 million (2015:
HK$240 million) mainly denominated in HK$ and MOP. The
net movement is mainly attributed to the net cash inflow of
approximately HK$190 million from operating activities, net
proceeds from placing of shares of approximately HK$58
million, payment of final dividend of the Previous Year and
interim dividend for the Year in the aggregate of HK$84 million,
partly financing the purchase of plant and equipment of
approximately HK$53 million, and repayment of borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$288 million (2015: HK$326 million)
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or Euros. Borrowings
generally include short-term and long-term bank loans, finance
leases and overdrafts bearing a floating interest rate. Of the
total borrowings, approximately HK$36 million (2015: HK$111
million) were short-term bank loans and bank overdrafts and
approximately HK$118 million (2015: HK$75 million) was the
current portion of long-term bank loans and obligations under
finance lease with maturity dates within 12 months. This
analysis exclude those long term borrowings with an immediate
demand clause that were classified under current liabilities.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net gearing ratio (net
borrowings divided by total equity) was 13% (2015: 23%). For
the purpose of calculating the Group’s net gearing ratio, the
net borrowings refer to the total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits and restricted
bank balances pledged as the security for credit facilities of the
Group. As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net current assets
were HK$232 million (2015: HK$199 million) and current ratio
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was 1.7 times
(2015: 1.7 times).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The decrease in the Group’s net gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the further enhancement of its capital base after
the placing shares of the Company in July 2015, as well as the
profits from operations during the Year, resulting in the Group’s
total equity as at 31 March 2016 increasing to approximately
HK$655 million (2015: HK$528 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars and Macau patacas. Its revenue, expenses, cash
and bank balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in those two currencies.
Apart from the purchase orders for machinery and equipment
paid in Euros and Singapore dollars and such short-term Euros
borrowings for such settlement purpose for the Year, the Group
was not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk nor

had it employed any financial instrument for hedging.
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two (2015: two) foundation works and
ancillary services projects of the Group of approximately
HK$18 million and HK$17 million, respectively (2015: HK$67
million and HK$29 million), the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities. The performance bonds are expected to
be released in accordance with the terms of the respective
construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2016, the net book amount of plant and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long term
bank loans amounted to approximately HK$210 million (2015:
HK$151 million) and approximately HK$139 million (2015:
HK$108 million), respectively. None of the banking facilities of
the Group were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2015:
HK$17 million).
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a pre-
approved list which admission is subject to assessment of their
background (including track record, pricing, market reputation,
timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales service)
and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors
consider that we have maintained good business relationships
with these suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During
the year, there was no material delay or dispute related to them
causing disruption to our operations. Some of them also have
developed good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had approximately 250
(2015: 228) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Our Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group has not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2016.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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TEERRE

THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 34 to 36 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Exg

EEemTIERERRERERRES
EBEE -EFCRAEEEAKENERE X
% RERVHERE EFSTHRRRY
MEEERRRMERESURARERNE
I HEITHEMNBRES EFEH &
BN ER - RARDERERRERER
@®TE - BEEERAERAKENBEEZE
RRITRELERAREERAREER

I

it

E=eRNERtRKE  HEE LR K
RN A FREMEFAEELS
REBEEBRE| -8  ARAERRITH
BERAL D B M BRI SEE R BIIRE £ 4
BE IFASEREFEEMTRERE
BEEASEXBEREEEEE NS
BEZANDT -EF/ARASGRAE
MR RE MR - WU FMITEFATMA
SEMER  RALRREEELBIH
SR EECAORBIEFH
R R ABAB BRI EAE

WTEZECEARARUREAL - M
BUFATEZCRRE=FEEEH -
BEREAEEEH  EARRERER
MARTE  BREFAZLEB=F IR
REBFEAEG LRE - REERRBFA
gt =z HNEEEFHHRERTIL
BEREIBRRERZEL -

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5



Corporate Governance Report

Board meetings

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31
March 2016, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2016, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company held a
training for regulatory and compliance update for all directors
during the year and intended to arrange another training
for them to refresh their knowledge on the same in the
forthcoming year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2016, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2015, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2015.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
28(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser
to conduct annual review on the internal control system
of the Group for the year and reported their findings and
recommendations to the audit committee and the Board.
It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and
are functioning as intended. During the year, financial budget
and forecast, management accounting information systems,
financial statement reporting and general ledger cycle were
reviewed and found that adequate controls are in place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 to ensure that the Group’s
services meet the requisite health and safety, quality and
environmental requirements. During the year, the Group passed
the audits conducted by external consultants and renewed
these certificates. Upon completion of pile construction,
the Group is required to engage external professionals to
conduct various applicable tests on all piles based on the
relevant contractual requirements and ensure full compliance
with customer requirements. Subject to these piling records
available to the customers for their testing and inspection,
the authorised persons employed by the customers certify
the value of the works completed in the payment certificates
issued to the Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and
monitoring systems have already been embedded in the daily
operations of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance risks
or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt with in
a proper manner, while significant issues are reported back
to the Board for their attention. The Company also compiles
monthly reports to the Board (including independent non-
executive directors) to update the latest financial performance,
position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company also published voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
during the year and it has intended to put it into practice
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 27 June 2016, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2016
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.6 million (2015: HK$1.5 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2015: HK$1.2 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 51 to 52 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 38 of this annual
report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2016.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

During the year, the Company held a few investor luncheons
and media meetings for them to understand more on the
business, strategies and performance of the Group. The
Company also published voluntary announcements on the
Stock Exchange website to update the market about its new
contracts awarded.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 73, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development of
the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation process,
research and development and formulation of overall corporate
policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother of Mr.
Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of Ms.
Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 64, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms.
Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 62, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of Mr.
Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of Ms.
Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 69, is an executive director. She is
also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group. She
joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for the
administrative and human resources matters of the Group
and has been involved in the management of the Group for
over 20 years. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in July
1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of Ms.
Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr.
Lau Chun Ka.

BITES

BIREALE 735 AEBIITES -
BEREIMA - BNAAEBZHWEB A A
MEF LA EASEEBRERE
REBER EERERRERRE %
LB ET B AR K o 258 £ 819904
B2mMETRER - BAIRELER
ZIRR LN - REERZ TSI
M LRI

BIIRBIKE - 6458 0 AREITHARM IR
TEE - FHARAESEZRENEARNE
FoFRETERNBAEE - RAFX
SEMETRERNBRBABNERE
B RE1990F 2 E E TR X -
BRBRBEERIIRREENLE
RREFR A T80/ MR 21 R 22 £ B RURL

BIIRR AL - 6258 HTTESE - WIAR/AK
SEZHMBRARMNES - FREL+ER
MBEAREE  BEAEERMRLREBRE
MEEMBREIE - [WE1990F B2 Mg &
TIRER - WAZIRALEMBIRE L E
B - REBHFAL LT/ BB L
UL ©

REBHLZL  69% WMITESE - BITAR
EEZHMNBARMNES - H#RE+FR
MBLRER - BFEEAEBENITRERER
ANERER UL2HRAEENEED
20%F - Q97T F7T AR B AR XK E
NN BEIREIR o B ARIRPLER
BB - 2 A & 3 R BIR B St A&
BIRR M1 o

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 71, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
philosophy in mathematics from the University of Alberta in
Canada. He is a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and
Chevalier dans I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of
France, and elected as a member of the European Academy of
Sciences. Currently, he is Chair Professor of Mathematics and
the Director of the Liu Bie Ju Centre for Mathematical Sciences
at City University of Hong Kong. He is also the Special Advisor
to the President at South University of Science and Technology
of China.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 40 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 859).

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a master’s degree of arts
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip’s work
focuses on fund raising for listed and unlisted companies, and
management of real estate investment funds. He is a director
of Altus Capital Limited where he is involved in the supervision
and management of corporate finance and advisory work for
companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Ip is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224) and an independent
non-executive director of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited
(stock code: 239), each of which is a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of
Japan Residential Assets Manager Limited, the manager of a
real estate investment trust listed in Singapore, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 61, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management of the
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group. He
obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute resolution from
City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has more than 35 years
of experience in the construction industry both locally and abroad.
He is a member of the Institution of Civil Engineers and Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Lee Wan Cheung, aged 55, is the Technical Director
of the foundation division. He is responsible for the design
and technical issues in the construction of foundation. He
has over 29 years of experience in the construction industry
in both private and public sectors in Hong Kong and the UK.
He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in civil engineering from
Kingston Polytechnic in 1986. He is a registered inspector and
a registered structural engineer under the Buildings Ordinance,
a registered professional engineer under the Engineers
Registration Board, a member of the Institution of Structural
Engineers and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. Jesse, Colin John, aged 63, is an adviser to the
Board. He is responsible for advising the Board on overall
development strategies in the construction and foundation
industries. He has over 40 years of experience in the
construction industry.

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 52, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Mr. Yiu Yu Ho, Thomas, aged 66, is the Operational Director
of the foundation division. He is responsible for the managing,
supervising and actuating the current projects of the Group. He
has over 45 years of experience, working in the construction
industry, since graduated in 1971 from Civil Engineering
Department of Hong Kong Baptist College.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 42, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors’ relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.
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BEENSNEEERBRE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 49, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is an
accredited mediator of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre. He
has over 20 years company secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year is included in
the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report on pages 4 to 22.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 53 of this annual report.

The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1.75 cents per share, amounting to HK$29.4 million,
representing approximately 33% dividend ratio on an annual
basis. Such payment of dividends will be subject to the
approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 8 September
2016 and are payable to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on 15 September 2016. It is expected that the
proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 6 October
2016.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
144 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$0.1 million.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2016,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$209 million (2015: HK$118 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2016
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.

ZZ—AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Directors’ Report
EEERE

ZATBIMBEMEEERNSE TRHEBEN
ARRENEE - B RBERFREA
KB UYEBREFEARREBE - /A
SEEMNME N - EFSAREZTEH
BREF(BEHTES FRATEER
BIUFHITES)  ARFAMBLARMNE
ERAKENEERDEEE - FAIRE

SERRREHABEHAREFLR
B EREMAL (BRERAER) &
th BB A -

RIERZ AT 8 R AN B ] K A BE AR #E A1 8
ATEENEREMYRORNDEE - T
SHBAARARN EMHE (2014510516
H) B %7717 H10% (B140,000,000/%
P EMABEREE.OTE TR ()
& R2015F12 5238 4 289 B 17 7 48
1% #9160,000,0004% & % [ {E0.00257% 7T
BINRD)) ([FTEIRE LR ) o AR AT4E
IR E T EF T EIRE LR - BT RE
TR BEETERBAQRNREL
HEERBDEITRMHMNI0% -

RIFZA & R AR B ERE bR E 2
E R B H RITEE B0 P A BB A A% S B
Bih&&EHE e TFRBIREET
Bz 17 #930% ©

BROEmZ At B PR E D N AR AR #E
o BREERSREEEMN T @AY
RAEENBEE (BRETE  EEH
KR ARITE R R P k&S
A TREEERSEITRMNHNI.0% -

EEARITREBREN R ((ERES
A EHEFENREZORETE RAA
BAME - BREAMENSNELHH BHEST
THERERM

41

[



42

Directors’ Report
EEERE

Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules,
an option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee
at any time during the Option Period in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and the terms on which the option was
granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c)
the nominal value of the shares on the offer date of the relevant
option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun Ka and Ms.
Leung Lai So will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 34 to 38.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:
Number of ordinary shares
Name of director of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
BEEnA 8 REE0.00258 THEBRHE (FR)

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000
BIREA LA

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000
REHLZL

(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the

Company:
Name of
Name of director associated corporation Number of shares
B4 HEEEER RHOHE
Mr. Lau Chun Ming Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
2R LA 615

Mr. Lau Chun Ming Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

BRB R E 10,0008

Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
Z2BHLL 616

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
RBHLL 10,0008

EHERE

R2016F3A31H  EER ARG REAE
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AR ER AR AT

Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
BREAL 55

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust
FRETNAIHA

71.43% Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
PREANITREA

b) EFRAQFHAREABAOELS -

Percentage of
shareholding  Capacity
EREAL 5B

100% Founder of a discretionary trust

RRETOABRA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
PREZNAIRA

100% Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
PHEETHZAA

100% Beneficiary of a discretionary trust
PRETHREA
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2016 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a
director or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as
follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the Company

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each held

Fif ¥ 5 R 180.002558 T Y
ZERYA

Name of shareholder
BExER

Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
77 721,200,000,0000%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#f21,200,000,0004%

Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust

(EREMEFENZTEA)

Long position 1,200,000,000
4 £1,200,000,0008%

Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

#f21,200,000,0000%
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Long position 167,296,000
7 8167,296,000%
Ruan David Ching-Chi Long position 167,296,000
4 2167,296,0008%

Yip Yok Tak, Amy Long position 167,296,000

i £167,296,000/%

Asian Equity Special Opportunities
Portfolio Master Fund Limited

Long position 122,296,000
1§ 8122,296,0000%
Bank of America Corporation Long position 136,197,312
1 2£136,197,312/%

Short position 136,197,312
K2 136,197,3120%

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. Silver Bright Limited is 100% held by Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust, of which issued units are 100%
held by Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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EHEERA

Interest of a controlled
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REBDEE O RS

Trustee
XA

Trustee
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Investment manager
REKE

Interest of a controlled
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Interest of a controlled
corporation
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Interest of a controlled
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3. Ruan David Ching-chi controlled 50% interest in RAYS
Capital Partners Limited.

4. Yip Yok Tak Amy controlled 50% interest in RAYS Capital
Partners Limited.

5. RAYS Capital Partners Limited controlled 100% interest in
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund
Limited.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 96.1% (2015: 99.7%)
of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 60.1% (2015: 37.3%) of the Group’s total
turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 70.5% (2015: 62.2%) of the
Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 25.9% (2015: 17.7%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 25 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BHEBERS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group had the REE2016F3A31HIEFE » AEEM

following continuing connected transactions: HBEMESSINT
Tenancy Agreements ME W=
Name of landlords Term of lease agreements Monthly rent Annual rent
EXEB HEWHRFH SAHE2 5582
(HK$) (HKS)
(&) (&)

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group
HEFRYENREFIEBANEXTFRARERLS

Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2012 ~ 31/7/2014 150,000 2,160,000
RHERAA 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 180,000

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HEGENERFEUNREESHNEM

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 73,000 876,000
Development Limited

ERERERERAA

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 3,800 45,600
RAGEERADA
Cheer Profit International 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 3,800 45,600

Enterprise Limited
EMBERCERRAA

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 50,000 600,000
RAZBARDE

Healthy World Investment Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017 50,000 600,000
REKREFRQA

Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2016 4,327,200
HE2016F3AMALEENR ZHAHE

Annual cap as disclosed in the Prospectus BREZHAHENEELR

For the year ending 31 March 2016 B Z2016F3A31B L FE 4,327,200
For the year ending 31 March 2017 EE2017F3A31ALLFE 4,327,200
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 47 to 48 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2016, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$781 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.465 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2016 and as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the

Company or by the Group after 31 March 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report 51

i
pwec

To The Shareholders Of Sam Woo Construction Group
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 53 to 143, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 53
FEXEHRBRER

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #Z2016F3A31H ILF/E

Year ended 31 March
B E3A3MBLEE

2016 2015
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FTHET FHET
Revenue LN 5 1,061,482 851,285
Cost of sales $HE KA 7 (851,470) (545,040)
Gross profit E7 210,012 306,245
Other income and gain, net Emam Rk FE—F58 6 1,010 3,217
Administrative expenses TR 2 7 (36,655) (55,362)
Operating profit 58 F 174,367 254,100
Finance income B s A 8 2,816 1,277
Finance costs s8R 8 (11,674) (14,367)
Finance costs, net MBER 58 8 (8,858) (13,090)
Profit before income tax R P15 354 B4 A1 165,509 241,010
Income tax expense Fri5 1 X< 9 (12,632) (21,842)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 & | &2
for the year e PNCE 152,877 219,168
Profit and total comprehensive income 7N ‘A & #E 253 A A FE(R % T
attributable to equity holders EemEB A B
of the Company 152,877 219,168
Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3IBLEE
Note 2016 2015
M =E HK cents HK cents
Al Al
(Restated)
€=v1l)
Basic and diluted earnings per share & B E A K #5585 2 7 11 9.23 15.85
The notes on pages 58 to 143 are an integral part of these FE8E143B 2 st AL SRS MIEHRE

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

heEERER

As at 31st March 2016 7201643 A31H

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets RBEE

Plant and equipment ek & 3R

Deferred income tax assets RIS EE

Deposits and prepayments e RIEN KA

Current assets REEE

Trade and retention receivables EWE SHRIBERMRE S

Deposits, prepayments and Ze  FENRER
other receivables H th & e3R8

Amounts due from customers BREFPEHNIESRE
for contract work

Income tax recoverable A EFT S

Restricted bank balances PR HIER 1T A

Short-term bank deposit 5 ERERITIF RK

Cash and cash equivalents ReMBREEEY
(excluding bank overdraft) (TRERITES)

Total assets EERE

EQUITY R

Capital and reserves EXREE

Share capital fi& 7

Reserves @

Total equity RSB

Note
s

13
18
14

14

14

15

16
16

16

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
605,566 509,245
131 233
2,617 3,911
608,314 513,389
295,954 202,367
592 3,308
28,562 27,054
116 =
20,559 55,041
17,797 8,000
183,060 177,061
546,640 472,831
1,154,954 986,220
4,200 4,000
650,851 523,780
655,051 527,780

The notes on pages 58 to 143 are an integral part of these F58E143B v M AL EERAMERE
consolidated financial statements. ZHRE D o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 55

REEERER

As at 31st March 2016 7201693 A31H

As at 31 March

ASHS31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
P & FET FAT
LIABILITIES af&
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Long-term borrowings REIER 21 120,873 122,510
Deferred income tax liabilities REFTEREE 18 43,782 41,818
Amount due to a director R —REEKIE 20, 25(d) 20,559 20,125
185,214 184,453
Current liabilities IR
Trade and retention payables ENESHERRES 19 87,307 36,936
Accruals and other payables FEET 3N IE I E A JE S BB 19 16,298 16,586
Amounts due to customers ENEFAEHTIIESR
for contract work 15 28,672 6,834
Borrowings B 21 167,444 203,423
Income tax payable FERTFTS 7 14,968 10,208
314,689 273,987
Total liabilities EEEEE 499,903 458,440
Total equity and liabilities EERABEHE 1,154,954 986,220

The financial statements on pages 53 to 143 were approved by F53F 1438 2 K R & E 182016F6 A
the Board of Directors on 27 June 2016 and were signed on its QTHEEESHE WA TIATRESE

behalf. Z o
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
24 #A RE &
Director Director
EE EE

a3

The notes on pages 58 to 143 are an integral part of these F58F 1438
consolidated financial statements. AR ER D o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
,.f\é%é%@%

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #Z2016F3A31H ILF/E

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
BA ROEE HttHEE RKREER @5t
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
THT  TER TET TET THET
(note 17(b))
(B5E17(0))
At 1 April 2014 #R2014F47818 = = 10,500 208,219 218,719
Comprehensive income 2HEKA
Profit for the year REF & F - - - 219,168 219,168
Contribution by and BREANHERMA
distribution to owners HEHMN2 K
Issuance of shares (note 17) BT (PR 3E17) 4,000 135,893 = - 139,893
Dividends relating to the year IR TEERREHE
ended 31 March 2014 paid HZ=2014F3A31H
to the then shareholders HFEERRES
(note 10) (F43E10) - - - (50,000)  (50,000)
At 31 March 2015 #2015%3A31H 4,000 135,893 10,500 377,387 527,780
At 1 April 2015 20154718 4,000 135,893 10,500 377,387 527,780
Comprehensive income 2HKEA
Profit for the year REE & H - - - 152,877 152,877
Contribution by and BEEANMLEERM
distribution to owners HEH WA
Issuance of placement shares BIIRERR
(note 17) (F35E17) 200 58,194 - - 58,394
Final dividends relating to the year BEHEBZ2015F
ended 31 March 2015 SHABIAIEFER
(note 10) KRS (F5E10) - - - (63,000) (63,000)
Interim dividend relating to the year B B& 220164
ended 31 March 2016 3A31R L FEH
(note 10) RERR 2 (FHEE10) - - - (21,000) (21,000)
At 31 March 2016 ®2016%3A31H 4,200 194,087 10,500 446,264 655,051

The notes on pages 58 to 143 are an integral part of these FL8E143B 2 st Bt EE A B HREK

ZEAREBD -

consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations

Interest paid
Interest received

Interest element of finance lease

payments
Restricted bank balances

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash generated from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities X H
Purchase of plant and equipment B
Prepayment for purchase of

plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of plant

and equipment

Decrease in restricted bank balances
Increase in short-term bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities REFBH AR L)

F
Cash flows from financing activities REBEEZBENRERE
Capital element of finance lease E 5

payments

Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Decrease/(increase) in restricted

bank balances

Proceeds from issuance of

ordinary shares
Share issuance costs
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from

financing activities

Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at

end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank overdraft

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv_\ é IE! ﬁ 5)2&: % %‘:Z

For the year ended 31st March 2016 #Z2016F3A31H ILF/E

Year ended 31 March

BZE3ASIBLEE

2016 2015
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B & FTHET FHET
REKETHHNRERE
KEEREFRR 55 24(a) 187,481 181,610
=ENEUES (7,153) (10,845)
2 FE 2,816 1,277
BMEHENROFE RS
8 (4,087) (3,397)
PR HIER 1T A 16 17,022 (20,443)
ENEFBMEH (5,922) (1,334)
RETFHMBRESFERE
... 190,157 146,868
RETHNELSRE
BB M R R (53,127) (65,115)
BERENEED
TR RIB (629) (2,030)
HE MM R ERED
Fr 1S 3K 18 24(b) - 2,505
PR B ER1T SRR - 9,300
Lﬁﬁﬂwﬁmi n (9,797) (8,000)
# ....(63,553) . (63,340)__
BMEHENRHERLS
\ (48,978) (25,261)
R HIRITER 67,800 61,028
BERBRITER (55,970) (100,267)
RIS BIRTTE R 316,414 158,818
BREHPRITER (391,728) (140,400)
RIRHIRTT i 4
B, (38 0) 16 17,460 (7,760)
BITEBRCTEHRIA
60,200 150,000
AR 173178 A (1,806) (10,107)
B B (84,000) (50,000)
METE (FTA) e
RneFE®ER (120,608) . ______: 36,051
ReRRSEEYILMTFE
5,996 119,579
RENORE KRB CEEY
177,061 57,482
REANRESRBRLSEEY
183,057 177,061
BERBESEBYD
RekBReEEY 16 183,060 177,061
RITEX 21 (3) =
183,057 177,061
E58E143H 2 Mt At TR 6 IS WK

The notes on pages 58 to 143 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHEEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 MRBHEE(E)

The preparation of the financial statements in BEDEMBREEN R
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of BHmEFAERE THRIMH
certain critical accounting estimates. It also - EEBRERALANEE2
requires management to exercise its judgement in BRR B IR BV B H T o S RER
the process of applying the Group’s accounting ZH s BEH - SKABRR
policies. The areas involving a higher degree MIGFTE R A M B mMERBER
of judgement or complexity, or areas where B BEAN 4R o

assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.
(a) New amendments to standards adopted by (a) AEERNAZERZ F1E
the Group )
The following new amendments to standards AT R Z FHERT R A S
are mandatory for the Group’s financial year B 18 7201564 A1H
beginning 1 April 2015 and have been adopted BN FEREIER - I
by the Group: BAREEHRA :
HKAS 19 (Amendment) ~ Defined Benefit Plants: BREED TERHE:
Employee Contributions F19R(B5)  EBEX
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements FAMBARSEA 20105 22012%
2010 - 2012 Cycle (B3) ERNEENE
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements é;%j?{i%i&%&ﬁﬁﬂ 20\1@@013%\
The adoption of these new amendments PLANEZ S HERI 2 & 5T
to standards does not have any significant REBELGZE M BRERAE
impact to the results and financial position of EEENRUBRATEE
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. EXFE-
S
: “Z—XEFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016 1‘ l'f’
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e PR R M

POLICIES (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on or after 1 April
2015 and have not been early adopted:

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRSs (Amendment)

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and
Amortisation "

Agricutture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements !
Financial Instruments

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate and Joint Venture

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operation

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers @

Leases®

Annual Improvements
2012 - 2014 Cycle

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

()

New and amended standards not yet adopted
(Continued)

m Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2016.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2018.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2019.

@ The amendments were originally intended to
be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The effective date has
now been deferred/removed. Early application
of the amendments continues to be permitted.

Management is in the process of making
an assessment on the impact of these new
and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations but is not yet in a position to
determine whether they will have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation during the financial year ended 31
March 2016 with early adoption permitted. The
Group has early adopted the requirements in
the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2015.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. l|dentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

2

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

BEREHBRBEE)

2.2 MiEAF]

22147

P 188 2 B 7S SR B i) 9
ER (BRERER
HAREREERZFR
B 8 m] B4 ) R A A B I

T/l

o

>t

/!

s

AEE e RS RIBER
XA AR - BB
BRAEBENREALRE
BFfEREE  FIELR
BN AT ETREN R
8- PrEEAERRIA
RELHMEENERE
EXBBENRFE - X
& GBI TR Y AT
AEEARERENRER
FRBEZNRKWERH

A FEEE -

EN - BARENEBEY
ERZENREZ
- AIARRESHZ
BEGE - HBARBE
HIEEAARKE 2 AL
BAK BfFELEHZA
HEEUBAZR S ARR °



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements 63

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAEBTHEMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 MEBRARE (&)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 22146 ABR (&)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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Acquisition-related costs are expensed as HIEEENERRES
incurred. S I

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the gain or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to confirm with the Group’s
accounting policies.

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

PrEEA(E - BT
ERSEERED S - A
KU IE T3 2 BT A 2
R MR FERH
FrE R SRR EEER
FENEZBECHEARE -
IERERBEMS @ Wt E
FISHIMAEBEAE B
FETRIE I A M 25 M ST A 15
B st AR ER TS
B ARFEEBEMNRF
B - MEREERNER

SERRABERS - X5
M AEER R R B F1S5 T
VASHEH - RERBEITT
LARTEE - B2 - B
RAFFHRENSECIED
HE - LEASEN S
_\Eﬁ?iﬁ—@( °

il




64

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
executive directors that makes strategic decisions.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(®)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional and the

Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of hyper-inflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued)

- income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as in other comprehensive
income.

2.5 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant
and equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2.6).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables” (note
2.10), “restricted bank balances”, “short-term bank
deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” (note
2.12) in the consolidated balance sheet.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date - the
date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Loans and receivables are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. They
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.
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70 Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Leased assets

The Group leases certain machinery and equipment.
Leases of machinery and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased machinery
and equipment and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other short-term and
other long-term payables. The interest element of
the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The machinery and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the
lease term.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
assets is reduced through the use of a provision
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “administrative expenses”. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Construction contracts
A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11,

‘Construction contracts’, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of the reporting period. When it is probable
that total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs
incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount of
revenue to recognise in a given period. The stage
of completion is measured by reference to work
performed to date as a percentage of total contract
value.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each contract
as either an asset or a liability. A contract represents
an asset where costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings; a contract represents a liability where the
opposite is the case.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

213

214

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less, and a bank overdraft. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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e PR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in
which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

2.18

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(@)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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e PR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient
taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.19 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their

fair values where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred

and recognised in the consolidated income

statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2 EXREHHEBMEGE)

2.18 BNEA K IEIEFT1SFL (&)

(b)

©

BRI (&)

SNEREEER ()

BEREFTEHEE TSR
B AR EPTE LR A
ML R - M
EAE R I Z A Al RE
HEREE - ARE B HE
AR A AT S B 1
EZRRMR -

g

EBRE AT TN AT A
BT IR & 2 SR AR 5
BEEH - MELMEHR
BEMAEER—RBGH
FARF—ERHERE T
IR B BB ARG
BER  LEERFRE
B - BRI RREFT S
MEERABEH -

2.19 BT Bh

= RE S T Hh R 35 4 B % AT UK
- MAKRE®ENEMEN
RIS - A BT HR (A FE B
BRERNFEEIALR-

B RN B8 2 BRI i B IR AE A
B WRBEEZRARSE
PR RS & et R P HERR

a3

77




78

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

2.21

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria
have been met. Revenue is shown net of sales tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised
based on the stage of completion of the contracts
as detailed in note 2.11 above.

Rental income from leasing of machinery and
equipment is recognised based on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loans and receivables is recognised using
the original effective interest rate.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the balance sheet date.

2

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

EXREBRBE (&)

2.20 W A FERR

WABRERAKEN AT XD
B2 L & B dn SRS AT IR
FEBERENAFE AEH
RBATRREAA EAE - K
KEEMZ AR BERAER R
ENAHERERERRA -
WATIEHMREER - RE -
Bl R HIA R EHAEE A
HRHERZS -

BEAHHBRABRIES X T
BB R R (FF R XXM 5
2.141) o

HEER M ERENESBAR
HERANIANBFRERER ©

BN AR F ZERER
AN R e M SRR R RUE
AEESKEREERREE
A mEsE  BRZTARE
ERMEFRAOEETRREA R
ME - WHEKTRSERLR
TER BN - BREREE R R
RN F B MAZREER
PR R R o

221 EER=H

@@ EREZEHY

BEZEFHROENER
ERZARER - AAF
HBEEEHIEESER
B BR 7S P EE £ Y F R
At B EE LB -



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(®)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements (Continued)

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination
when the entity has a detailed formal plan
to terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal.
In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessors) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(a) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities which
are denominated in a currency that is not
the Company’s functional currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$ and Macao Patacas
(“MOP™).
liabilities are denominated in HK$ and

The majority of assets and

MOP, and there are no significant assets
and liabilities denominated in other
currencies. Management considered that
the foreign exchange risk for MOP is
minimal since exchange rate fluctuation
was minimal.
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e PR R M

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank
balances and borrowings. Except for
borrowings with variable interest, the
Group has no other significant interest-
bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Cash and bank
balances at fixed rates expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk. The Group
has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2016, if the interest
rates on borrowings had been 100
basis-points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would be HK$2,579,000
(2015: HK$2,890,000) lower/higher
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits, restricted bank balances, trade and
retention receivables and deposits and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these
financial assets.
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e P RRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(®)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, 96%
(2015: 100%) of the Group’s revenue was
derived from its top five customers. As at 31
March 2016, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 100% (2015: 100%) of the trade
receivables were due from the Group’s six
(2015: two) customers.

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, management reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade and retention receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment provision is made for the
irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group maintains liquidity by a number
of sources including orderly realisation of
short-term financial assets, receivables and
certain assets that the Group considers
appropriate and long term financing including
long-term borrowings are also considered
by the Group in its capital structuring. The
Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and interest
bearing borrowings which enable the Group
to continue its business for the foreseeable
future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interests payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on the
Where
the loan agreement contains a repayable on

current rates at the year end date).

demand clause which gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time,
the amounts repayable are classified in the
earliest time bracket in which the lender could
demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016
Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

Amount due to a director

Bank overdraft

Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Obligations under finance leases

As at 31 March 2015
Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

Amount due to a director
Long-term bank loans

Short-term bank loans
Obligations under finance leases

2016534318
ENEHHRARRES
fEqt B R
HitEMNE
EN—REZHA
RTEX
RARTER
RHRITER
HEMSEHL

2015537318
ENESTARRES
EatAR

Rt fHE
EN—2EZHA
RARTER
RHRITER
BEHEEE

3 HBEERER(E)
3.1 BBREBREXR(E)
() RBEzERE (&)
On demand
and Between Between More
less than 1and 2 2and5 than
1 year years years 5 years Total
RERR
PR-F -E@ME CZZRF RBIF @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEL TAR TET TEL TAL
87,307 - - - 87,307
15,446 - - - 15,446
- - - 23,725 23,725
3 - - - 3
90,841 32,404 23,760 - 147,005
35,867 - - - 35,867
48,499 40,408 28,953 - 117,860
36,936 - - - 36,936
16,023 - - - 16,023
- - - 23,725 23,725
65,545 27,912 44,614 - 138,071
110,974 - - - 110,974
34,631 30,869 25,299 - 90,799

35
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
and borrowings. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce borrowings. The Group monitors capital
on the basis of gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposit and
restricted bank balances pledged for security of the
borrowings. The gearing ratio decreases because
of the Group’s profit earned during the year as well
as the proceeds from share placement. The gearing
ratios were as follows:

3

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

BBEBRER (&)

3.2 BAXARKER

AEEEREANBRRRE
AEBAFELENED 1
i A% BCER 75 2R [2] 3 I 23 E A 4
SRAARENS - RERE
RIEMNE N EBIAFEEARK
A o

rEBENEAGBEREESR
MG - REFRFARBRERR
B AEEYRERBEIMN TR
RORESHE MERREFEE
BT EEEAR
’/{a cAEENEEBER
EERER - BERBHEL
BREFERAEERTE - A
BEFHENEETRRE KRS
ZEY - RHRITERA LS
ERERERRAERZ R
HERITARARETE - ARAEE
P R R ERUs A R AR 19 Bl & 9
FIGIE  FEEBBLET
MR- BERBHLIRMT :
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e P RRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE (&)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 BARBRER (&)

3.3

Borrowings (including obligations &3 (B FEMEHEE T
under finance leases and RRTHES) (MFE21)
bank overdraft) (note 21)

Less: cash and cash equivalents, J& : R& MRS EEY

short-term bank deposit g HiIRIT I 3K
and restricted bank LA K sk VE R AR
balances pledged for R mArER 2
security of a borrowing SR B RIT 4 8
Net debt BEFRE
Total equity BT
Gearing ratio BEARHLX
Fair value estimation 3.3

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits, restricted bank balances,
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, trade and retention payables,
other payables and borrowings approximate their
fair values, which either due to their short-term
maturities, or that they are subject to floating rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

As at 31 March

M3HA31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FB T FE T
288,317 325,933

(200,857) (202,521)

87,460 123,412
655,051 527,780
13% 23%

AT @M

AEENEMEEMAE (B
RREFASEFEY  BHR
TER  XRHIRITER &
WEZRAMMES  RER
H 8RR - B E B3R
RREE - B ENKIARE
) RBBEREHRFEBA
RE B REEERAGBHR
EEEFFNAFERES -

BN —REEFANKEER
HERAFENGEOE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(@) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy, the
industry practice, expected usage of the assets,
expected repair and maintenance, the technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
or improvements in the market. Residual values
of the machinery and equipment are determined
based on prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets taking into account the condition of
the relevant assets or the value of scrap metal
and other economic considerations. Depreciation
expense would be significantly affected by the
useful lives and residual values of the plant and
equipment as estimated by management. Decrease
in residual value during the year due to decrease
in scrap metal price and a general decrease
in second-hand machinery price resulted in an
increase in depreciation charge of approximately
HK$15,551,000.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$8,116,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$3,286,000).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =Mz SiEEAERA A
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EESR AT RAE

et R A TR IR B KRB R E Al
A (BREE@EBIBER TEREEMN
EHERB/EENTES) ERET
filr o

AREBERREL B RBR - H
SRANERNS  BEREE -
RICSHABERLERER - B
SRBRERTEYRFENEER
BENREEFELERABOMGE
KRR o

(@) MWW RREEOEET A ERFEH
KFIREE

EREDN2ERAEENEBKE
AN HEEBTEBX T%8
Bl - BEETEEAL  FHEEE
EkiRE BAmSEtmEE
BO Mk E S EBR - &
FHH R BRI R A o
MW R R EOD R AR EEDIRE
BERERKREEMNRITME
BE - WirRBBEEENKSR
SEHENEERAEMEES
BEZE - BEEA MR
BEOAERAFHREGE
BERHITEEREEATE -
FAFIREBERD 2B EEE
BT EBA K — F MBS
BT QETEZHEML
15,551,000/ 7t °

A B 58 AR O TR SR (B (B —
R A10% - AR E ZE20165F
SABIAILLFEMNEER#
1 n8,116,0007% 7t (20154 :
3,286,000/ 7T) °
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EBEESEFTRHE(E)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o) Estimated impairment of plant and equipment (o) HE R RENIEERE
The Group’s major operating assets represent AEBNETELEEES
machinery and equipment. Management performs e K R AT - i B B
review for impairment of the plant and equipment A Bl 1 T 2R R U R K
whenever events or changes in circumstances REMNEREEDAEREEEK
indicate that the carrying amounts of these assets O -BEEEBEeHZEE
may not be recoverable. EETRENME -
Management considered there was no impairment SR R R DN
indicator of machinery and equipment during the BAENEEHAEE - B -
year as these assets were used for profitable FHEMNE kA BE
construction projects, and there is a strong demand RE BHERERA
of these plant and equipment in the second hand FAHAR I R E R -
market.

(c) Impairment of trade and retention receivables ) EWEZREKRE SR

(]

Management determines the provision for EEERBEFMNEER
impairment of trade and retention receivables BREBSHNBRITHER
based on the credit history of customers and the BETREKE S HRIERIRE
current market condition by business segment. SHREREE TG E
Significant judgment is exercised on the assessment HE PR EWRSRIAR K E
of the collectability of receivables from each M 2ETERNHE -
customer. In making the judgment, management HEETHER EEEe
considers a wide range of factors such as results EE—ZRIAEX MR#E
of follow-up procedures, customer payment trends EFRER EFPHNER
including subsequent payments and customers’ BE(BIEHBEMR AE
financial positions. If the financial conditions of FRBEARL - HAEER
the customers of the Group were to deteriorate, = B | B S AR N B 2= 1 Al
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make ssE T Ree 1 - Rl g
payments, additional allowances may be required. T INEE  ZE IR
The final outcome of the recoverability of these THEE D W B A =R 4E R A
receivables will impact the amount of impairment HFENRESEEK Y
required. 2.

=1

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by the
management on the basis of quotations from time
to time provided by the major contractors, suppliers
or vendors involved and the experience of the
management. In order to keep the budget accurate
and up-to-date, management conducts periodic
reviews of the budgets of contracts by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact
on the profit recognised in each period.

The Group recognised its contract revenue
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of the individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date when
the activity is completed usually fall into different
accounting period. The Group reviews and revised
the estimates of contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each construction contract as the contract
in progress. Management regularly reviews the
progress of the contracts and the corresponding
costs of the contract revenue.

4
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EEGR AT RAE (&)

BESY
AEER A KETHRE RE

'ET?%%L?%’:.\U%%E”J’\%H&

BHKRA - BEHBERE
%O%Lﬁ;ﬂr c BEERIKSH
BEEMF2AER  HERXK
RIS ER TR IZ A RE R
ﬁi@ﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁéﬁ R AR
BE - R ERREHNNTE
HE EHEABNEEESRE
LEBRELESEMEHRHEEY
BEETEN ZEZEARME

AIRER BN & AR AR A o

AEERBSRZEIRESAON
HEAERAIBETIEG
BAENBENESLERELN
WA - ARIBIBERIES KT
EEBRME - AKEEMEI L
HERESMTHKAHBEE
RAENEHHE AEEE
REHETRR RIEFTAS
BEAVORENEHRA - &
A - BEIHERAEORE
st - ERETEHRT & NE
B RA DA B ERK A -



Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements 91

e P RRME

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EBEESEFTRHE(E)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Macau. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax expense in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

AEBEBHNEE MR
FISH - EREMGHE
W AfELERHE -
BEZBEX G MNAEHIUE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
gross contract receipts on foundation works and ancillary
services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue
recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and
ancillary services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors regard the Group’s business as a single
operating segment and reviews financial information
accordingly.

(@  Segment information

The Group’s revenue from external customers
attributable to the countries in which the Group
derives revenue and information about its non-
current assets, excluding deferred income tax
assets, based on both (i) the country of domicile
of companies holding these assets and (ii) their
physical location are detailed below:

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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WAR D EBEHR

WAEHEEREEBRETHETRE
K M B AR ) A KUK - TR A
SErERE R ALT ¢

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31ALEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT TET
1,061,482 851,285

ARRIMATESRHRESEETE
BERRA -ATEFTHAKED
EBA D RE—RKEDE - WHE
EHMBER -

BE

ok

(a »

AEBERBEINFETEFPBAZE
XEFERBDEE (TRFEL
EMREE) » BAIEA %
FEEMNRAEMAERR R
(N EEENERMEMER
BRI
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZITBER (&)
(Continued)
(@ Segment information (Continued) @ SHHIBEHE)

B I EBE P ETA

Revenue from external customers

Year ended 31 March

HZE3ASIBLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Hong Kong B 412,590 446,417
Macau SBFY 648,892 404,868
1,061,482 851,285

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income tax FEGENEE (T B EEE
assets) HEE)

()  Based on country of domicile of companies iy WBEFEEZZFEENAT
holding the assets: FMATAERK :

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FH&T FET
Hong Kong BB 608,183 513,156
The machinery and equipment of the REBA B R REHR=

Mith EGR A 7 o = F#
WAR QRIS MM
AR AERRE D
both is Hong Kong. e

Group were owned by Sam Woo Bore Pile
Foundation Limited and Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited, the country of domicile of
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5
(Continued)

(@) Segment information (Continued)

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income tax
assets) (Continued)

(i)  Based on physical location of the assets:

Hong Kong BE
Macau JEFT

(b)  Revenue derived from major customers:

There were three (2015: four) customers which
individually contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016.
The revenue from each of these customers
amounted to HK$638,055,000, HK$156,015,000
and HK$154,449,000 respectively, for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$317,755,000,
HK$250,307,000, HK$144,853,000 and
HK$86,143,000).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

AR D EER (&)

DEREFL ()

HRBEE (T ERELAT
HWEE) (&)

(i) REZFEENERMRE
& :

As at 31 March

R3A31H

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT TAET
608,183 313,754
- 199,402
608,183 513,156

KEEEEFHRA :

B E20164F3A31H It F
B =& (20155 : U&) &
FAASEMNKAETRBB
10% - REZEEFPSBEH
WA RE E2016463A31H
I F E 5 Bl £638,055,000
&It 156,015,000%
7T K154,449,0008 T
(20154 : 317,755,000
&It~ 250,307,000%
7L~ 144,853,000 Tt &
86,143,000/8 7T) °
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e I HRAR MR

6 OTHER INCOME AND GAIN, NET 6 HiWZIRFAE-—FEHE

Year ended 31 March

BZE3ASIHILEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET

Machinery and equipment R EERES WA
leasing income - 859

(Loss)/gain on disposal of plant and  H & #4 & 58 1 £Y

equipment (B18) /FE (496) 1,763
Write-off of plant and equipment 0 5 e A % R A (652) (274)
Government grant I 4 Bh 477 =
Recovery from insurance claim REBREWE N SE 1,681 867
Others Hh - 2
1,010 3,217

=T —FFH# | ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales

Construction contracts costs
(note (a))

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— leased plant and equipment

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment

Operating lease rental in respect of

— office and storage premises

— directors’ quarters (note 28(a))

Professional fees

— incurred for initial public offering

— others
Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Others

Total cost of sales and
administrative expenses

7

$HE RN
EEA KA (M iE @)

e
—BE#MRERE
—THEH &R

e RIRE

HAt

THRAX
EIRAN(RIEEEHE)
(Mt 5% (o))
ZE RN &
e
—BEHRWRRE
NTEENEERERS
~-WARERBEYE
—EEBE (M5E28()
BEXEBH
-REXARBEEL
—H A
MEBERX
RITHAX
Hfth

HEKARRITHRAX AR
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BEEEIHREX

Year ended 31 March
B Z3ASIHILEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx TAET
811,994 519,829
26,524 10,787
5,572 3,798
818 1,897
6,562 8,729
851,470 545,040
15,672 13,492
1,551 1,618
435 651
5,253 3,889
2,167 2,167

- 11,662

1,442 11,665
1,735 2,058
629 1,041
7,771 7,219
36,655 55,362
888,125 600,402
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EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

notes:

(@)

Construction contract costs included but are not limited
to costs of construction materials, staff costs (refer to
note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts and consumables,
subcontracting charges and transportation.

ITERFS

Wages and salaries
Pension costs — defined

e P RRME

7 BRMEIINRX(E)

Hiat -

()

RRE RN — R KE B

contribution plans (note) GE)
Employment benefits EERT
Less: amount included in o BT ABRES DA
construction contracts costs or ERIBRERN SR

capitalised in work-in-progress

note:

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong
Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees in Hong Kong are each required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ gross earnings with a
ceiling of HK$1,500 per month from 1 June 2014 onwards
to the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee social security
plan (the “Social Security Plan”) and contributes a fixed
amount for each employee as required by the regulations
in Macau.

!‘t#_ st
1= 0 Al

“Z—XEFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BEAHRABREETRRY
REMBRA - BTRA (2
ST XEDp) - EERER -
THEEER DEEAR
BHEM -

Year ended 31 March

HESAZMBLEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAET
167,701 179,864
3,203 1,918
2,183 2,539
173,087 184,321
(157,415) (170,829)
15,672 13,492

G

REERBEESCRFIMRES
RG22 ERREIEATES
&l ([aFESFT8]) - RiRATE
SFTEIMMRR  BEREREREE
BEZAREB BB ANS%M
RIBSRTEIMEL IR - 20144
6 A1B RIS A LR A&1,500/%8
=

AEBTRBRFVERRERESR
EE2EEEHSREAS ([
SREFE ) - WEHEESHRE

K
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7  EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 REBESINEX(E)

notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)

(o)  (Continued) ) (#&)
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF REERBRESTE Rt eRE
Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make the HEIE—STREIEE#EE
required contributions under the scheme. EH R TR o

(c)  Five highest paid individuals ) HEEEHFALT
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the five individuals H ZE2016F3A31BLEFEE K
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group include SEREERFALARBRES
three directors (2015: three) whose emoluments were % (2015 =Z&)BE » FEN
reflected in the analysis presented in note 28(a). The B & A BT sE28() My D TR 2751 -
emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals (2015: RIEBRE (2015F : MWB) AL
two) are as follows: TRABOMEemT

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILLEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHBT FET
Salaries, other allowances and ITE& - EMZEMREMET
benefits in kind 3,316 3,168
Bonus TEAT 248 491
Pension costs — defined RIKS KA - EBEERETS
contribution plans 107 118
3,671 3,777
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BRMEIIHNEAX(E)
notes: (Continued) Wi - (&)
(¢)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () HREREHFALE)
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the ZEATHMENFIATEER :

following bands:

Number of individuals
Year ended 31 March

AE
BZ3AMALEE
2016 2015
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the REBBEREMESKAS
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an B AT X HERMESIES
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as IR AN E B 3k h0 A AN £ B B 1Y

compensation for the loss of office. SRS B A o
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8 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 8 HMBBRARKAE

Year ended 31 March

BZSABLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT T T
Finance income IR N
— Interest income on bank deposits ~ — R 1717 Z Y AL E UL A 2,816 1,277
2,816 1,277
Finance costs B%ER
— Interest expense on bank loans —RITEFRF BFAX (7,153) (10,661)
— Interest expense on obligations —“RMEHEEENFNEMX
under finance leases (4,087) (3,397)
- Interest expense on bank —RITEZNNEFAXZ
overdrafts - (184)
- Interest expense on amount — BN —RBEZFIENFE
due to a director (note 25(b)) X (P 5E25(0)) (434) (1295)
(11,674) (14,367)
Finance costs, net B ER - F58 (8,858) (13,090)

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Hong Kong profits tax BEMEH
Current income tax BV HA P 15 3%
Over-provision of current KEREHMEHRLN
income tax in prior year RS
Deferred income tax (note 18) EIEFTS L (FI3E18)
Macau profits tax BT S M R
Current income tax BVEA P13 7%

Hong Kong profits tax and Macau complementary tax
have been provided at the rate of 16.5% and 12%,
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: same).

e ISR

FrEHMX

REEE2EBERIHENAERE
#s

Year ended 31 March

HZ3A31BLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx T T
8,070 3,347
(63) =
2,066 13,341
2,559 5,154
12,632 21,842

E Z£201643A31B L FE ' E &t
HETFERBLR T D A1R16.5% &% 12%
MEARBEBNNEGHRERMMERH
F RS (20154 : AR) ©
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e PR R M

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9 FEHEX(E)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs R & B B FT 1S B AT R A /Y 5 58 B R
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax AEAMERFENERHENEZR
rate of Hong Kong as follows: U

Year ended 31 March
BZE3ASIBLEE

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHET FHET
Profit before income tax B P45 750 AL 5 A 165,509 241,010
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 216.5%H) B X H R B IR 27,309 39,767
Tax effects of: UTEBENBETE
Tax rates of overseas operation B INFETS TR R (2,199) (1,933)
Income not subject to tax BARBEA (19,634) (21,107)
Expenses not deductible LR b3
for tax purposes 7,271 5,086
Tax losses for which no deferred W EERBELEMSHEE
income tax asset was recognised KT IR 18 2 29
Over-provision of income tax KFEMS TR BEEE
in prior year (63) =
Tax concessions IR % (54) =
Income tax expense TSR 12,632 21,842

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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e ISR

10 DIVIDENDS

10 KRE

Year ended 31 March

103

BZESAMALEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Interim dividend of HK5 cents B EIR KR & H AR S
(2015: nil) per ordinary share TR @RS
declared and paid (note (a)) ZZE—RF  E) (EeE) 21,000 =
Proposed final dividend of EEABRETR T B
1.75 HK cents 1.757% L (20154 : 157%10)
(2015: 15 HK cents) per ordinary (Bt 5E (o))
share (note (b)) 29,400 60,000
Additional dividend paid due to 201547 A R % ik ()
allotment of shares in July 2015 IR EEEIN S
(note 17(a)(ii)) (B 5E17(a)(ii)) - 3,000
50,400 63,000
notes: Hiat -
(a) On 26 November 2015, the Board resolved to declare (a) M2015F11H26H  EE &%

RUAFESIRT B EES

an interim dividend of HK 5 cents per shares for the year

(2015: nil). AL (20154 « &) ©
() A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March by REERFAFRE LEH

HE=2016F3HA31RB It FEE#
FIRFERBR B FRI755L
(20154 : 15 1ll) * & £ B
48 %829,400,000/8 7T (20154 :
60,000,000 7T) ° Z F4R A B
Rz AR R IEEARS -

2016 of 1.756 HK cents (2015: 15 HK cents) per share,
amounting to a total dividend of HK$29,400,000 (2015:
HK$60,000,000), will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
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11

EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the respective years.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used for such purpose has been retrospectively
adjusted to reflect the share subdivision with effect
from 23 December 2015.

Profit attributable to equity RAGERTEAEBGR
holders of the Company (F#7T)
(HK$’ 000)

Weighted average number FESRERRRNK
of ordinary shares for the 58 A% N #E 15 EL
purpose of calculating (F)
basic earnings per share
(thousands)

Basic earnings per share BRREREF) GEAL)
(HK cents)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount
as the basic earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at the
year end.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

BRAER

(@)

=N

TREREF TIRIE AR A B
@A AE(G & bR AR BE
BB BT L @R MNE T EGE
HoARFTELBRMET
HEHE ARB2015F12823
B #E A U IR 0 B 4B T /B B
W o

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31ALEE

2016 2015
(Restated)

(& E5))

152,877 219,168

1,656,612 1,383,012

9.23 15.85

%8

BREERNETRESRF
MR - TR R R HERTT
EMEEEE LB -
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SUBSIDIARIES 12 KB AF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AR A R20169F3 A318 &) £ Z it
March 2016: BAFRE:
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest Principal activities and
Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation
#% T AR 3t 2 ERTRBZRA FEERER TEERREEHY
2016 2015

Directly held by the Company:
HAARERER:

Sam Woo Group Limited British Virgin Islands  US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERAHES 10,000% 7 REEK

Indirectly held by the Company:

HANRBERS:
Sam Woo Bore Pile Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
Foundation Limited ancillary services in
Hong Kong
=M ERRRA BA 10,000,000/ 7T REBETHETIRR
HR 4L B AR S
Sam Woo Construction & Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100%  Trading of and leasing of
Engineering Limited machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong
—MEREHEBRRF BE 100,0007% 7 REBEERMEHMNERE
Sam Woo Engineering Hong Kong HK$500,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery and
Equipment Limited equipment in Hong Kong
ZHEWARAR BB 500,000/ 7T WEBHEEMN R
Sam Woo Foundation Macau MOP30,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
Limited ancillary services in Macau
SAM WOO KA R 2 7] BF YR 9%30,000 RRFETHETRR
AL MR 75
Sam Woo Construction Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
Limited services in Hong Kong
HEEERAR BE 10,0007% 7 REBETHEIRR
- [RAHRES
it
=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016
e
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 HMEBARE(E)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AT & R20165F3H31H /) = Z [
March 2016: (Continued) BRARZE: (&)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest Principal activities and
Name incorporation share capital held as at place of operation
a8 T AR 3t 2 BETRAZRK FERER FTEERREELY
2016 2015
Sam Woo Civil Contractors Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
EMEIARIRERRE 'R 10,000 7T TEXH
Sam Woo Civil Works Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Inactive
=ZMEARBERRA BE 28T TEXH
Sam Woo Foundation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong
R ETIRERAR B35 28T REBETHEATRER
R AL B AR
Sam Woo Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of financial services
to group companies
=M BERRA N 28T mEER AR SRR
Sam Woo Offshore Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
Engineering Limited
HEFIRERAR BE BT TEXK
SW AA Construction Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
SNTNREEERRAR BB 1T TEXHK
Sam Woo Foundation Group ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
Limited
S ESEERAR BE BT TEXHK
Redland Contractors Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Foundation works and ancillary
services in Hong Kong
PREEERAF BB 2B T RERETHEIRER
HRAL IR AR 7%
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13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 B KRB
Machinery  Furniture
and and Motor
equipment fixtures  vehicles Total
BRRSE BAREE RE @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
THET THET FTHET THT
At 31 March 2014 R2014F3A31H
Cost A 539,674 1,656 6,181 547 511
Accumulated depreciation 2EtE (141,910) (1,254) (5,515)  (148,679)
Net book amount REFE 397,764 402 666 398,832
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZE201563A31HLLFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 397,764 402 666 398,832
Additions ANE 127,369 158 2,412 129,939
Transfer to contracting BREERANIRE
work-in-progress (3,274) S = (3,274)
Write-off HsH (266) (1) (7) (274)
Disposals HE (717) 6) (19) (742)
Depreciation nE (14,269) (131) (836)  (15,236)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 506,607 422 2,216 509,245
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H
Cost A 661,409 1,629 8,409 671,447
Accumulated depreciation Rt g (154,802) (1,207) (6,193)  (162,202)
Net book amount REFE 506,607 422 2,216 509,245
Year ended 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3A31 B LEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 506,607 422 2,216 509,245
Additions = 129,491 102 757 130,350
Write-off i sH (652) - - (652)
Disposals & (846) - - (846)
Depreciation neE (31,748) (140) (643)  (32,531)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 602,852 384 2,330 605,566
At 31 March 2016 2016F3A31H
Cost A 787,926 1,663 9,010 798,599
Accumulated depreciation 2t E (185,074) (1,279) (6,680)  (193,033)
Net book amount REFE 602,852 384 2,330 605,566
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13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 MWK RE(E)

(@)

The net book amount of plant and equipment held (@)
under finance lease obligations comprise (note 21(f)):

Cost — Capitalised finance KAEA-ERTELANBERE
leases

Accumulated depreciation REHITE

Net book amount BREFE

As at 31 March 2016, plant and equipment (b)

amounting to HK$138,768,000 (2015:
HK$107,599,000) were secured for the Group’s
bank borrowings (note 21(g)(iii)).

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

REREHERTRHEHHEM

REHEREFEBRE (M
21(f) :
As at 31 March
MA3HA31H

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

THERT THET

221,989 157,946

(11,943) (7,005)

210,046 150,941

MR2016%F3A31H ' €% A
138,768,000/ jT (20154 :
107,599,000/ 7T, ) B # i K 5%
HREAREERITE A K H
(Bt 5E21(g)(iii)) °
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14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 14 BREZHRERRES URE
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER & ANREBAREMERRE

RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March

MN3HA31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
Trade receivables fEWE 5 58 203,833 127,835
Retention receivables JEU IR BB & 92,121 74,532
Trade and retention receivables JEWE ZHIBERRE S 295,954 202,367
Deposits, prepayments and e BRNZER
other receivables (note) H i W 38 (P aE) 3,209 7,219
Less: non-current portion D FERNEREL o (2,617) (3,911)
Current portion BIHEA SR 5 592 3,308
note: The balance mainly represents receivables for leasing of BT ZEBTEAEKREERE R
machinery and equipment, bond deposit for construction RER BEHEEANBLHIRE
projects, rental deposit, prepayment for plant and 4 HeEe B ERED
equipment and other miscellaneous prepayments. YA 20E DA R H A TR A 2
15 o
The credit period granted to trade customers other than REWRBEIN BHEFPERLS
for retention receivables was within 45 days. The terms KAAKEER - RERB MK
and conditions in relation to the release of retention HEEHAESESHMBERATR -
vary from contract to contract, which may be subject AIREERF B R T - R ETH X
to practical completion, the expiry of the defect liability AN EMNHEERES SHBR -
period or a pre-agreed time period. The Group does not AEBTESEEMNERRIELRE
hold any collateral as security. o
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14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on

invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days
31 to 60 days

Total

1£230H
31£60H

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention receivables

were classified as current assets. The ageing of the

retention receivables based on invoice date was as

follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 5 years

More than 5 years

—FR
—Eh%F
HBiBRF

As at 31 March 2016, there were no trade and retention
receivables which were past due (2015: Nil).

14
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ERESRARRES  URIE
& BAREARAtERRE (&)

WS ZRERBEZBHELD
FRERDATEAT ¢

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FE T
147,822 127,835
56,011 =
203,833 127,835

RIEBEEREBERA BRRES
NER/RBEE - BRWRE S RE
HRAHERRET

N

As at 31 March

R3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TERT TAET
52,189 51,413
39,485 23,119
447 -
92,121 74,532

MR2016F3A31H » WEZ B K
JEWE S IERRE £ (20155 :

&) -
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14 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 14 ERESHRERRES UER
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER & EAREREMEKRRE(Z)
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables FEWE 5518 R IR 8B & /) IR HE E 8
approximated their fair values and were denominated in HAYERSE - WA T EEE:

the following currencies:

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2016 2015

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FET FET

HK$ BT 219,792 111,196

MOP JEPTHE 76,162 91,171

295,954 202,367
As at 31 March 2016, there was no impairment in trade, MN2016E3H31H B E 5 - R
retention or other receivables (2015: Nil). 224 5 E e R BB I £E5R{E (2015

F:E) -
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15 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS 15 HEEEHNIRE

Contract costs incurred plus
attributable profits less
foreseeable losses to date

Progress billings to date

Included in current assets/(liabilities) T AGRBEE, (BE)H

are the following: SEWNT

Due from customers for
contract work

Due to customers for
contract work

As at 31 March 2016, amounts due from customers
for contract work included a balance of HK$9,374,000
(2015: HK$9,374,000) not yet certified by a customer.
On 14 November 2013, a subsidiary of the Company
served a notice of arbitration to this customer to settle
the dispute on the final payment of the contract. The
arbitration is still in progress as at 31 March 2016. Taking
into consideration the advice from its legal representative,
the directors consider that the Group is fully entitled to
payment to cover at least the balance on book.

In connection with the listing of the Company on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a
deed of indemnity (the “Deed of Indemnity”) was signed
on 25 September 2014, pursuant to which Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, a director of the Company, irrecoverably and
unconditionally undertakes to pay up the entire sum or
the shortfall, if any, on demand by the Group if the Group
fails to recover such amount.
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BEZBEEMNRK

EBUREFEHNTREESHE

ENEFPEHNIRER

As at 31 March

BEZBRELMNEHRAN
FE 54 FRL AT TR R B 18

R3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TR TAET
1,148,288 318,273

(1,148,398) (298,053)

(110) 20,220
28,562 27,054
(28,672) (6,834)

(110) 20,220

M2016E3A318 ' BWEF A X
TRSERE " R2EFHARKE
B 45 #429,374,0007% JT (20154 :
9,374,000/ JT) ° 2013511 H14
B ARaMBARMZERF 3
R EBA - ERBATHEEGOK
B REA S - ZPER20169F3 A
INAMEETH - LEBEBEEER
EMER ZEERELAEEFR®E
ESELUREREMEMTRERTN
3K e

R2014F9A25H AR AR T
BHARSARARER ETER
FI—MmmMERE ((REZE]) @ &
it AR QE)E E B IR AP ST A T AT
O] Ko £ k1 A 5 - i 2 55 B K B

EEBZE FREAEEZXE
BYfEHEeBEEB(E) -
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16
Cast at bank RITHES
Cash on hand FERS
Less: restricted bank balances (note) J& : R #18R 1745 6% (B 5F)
Less: short-term bank deposit B R ERIRTT I K
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY
Maximum exposure to credit risk FEENESEERR
note:

As at 31 March 2016, the restricted bank balance represents a
deposit of HK$20,559,000 placed by a director (note 20).

As at 31 March 2015, restricted bank balances consisted of (a)
deposit of HK$17,456,000 to secure a performance bond; (b)
deposit of HK$17,460,000 to secure a revolving loan; and (c) a
deposit of HK$20,125,000 placed by a director (note 20).

e ISR

ReRESEEY
As at 31 March
M3A31H

2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAT
221,366 240,039
50 63
(20,559) (55,041)
(17,797) (8,000)

183,060 177,061
221,366 240,039

Bt -

M20165E3A31H @ R HI 4R 17 & &2
K 20,559,000 LH—REEHFA
Miz& (K1FE20) °

M2015€3A318 » R # iR 17 4
# B 15 (a)17,456,000/8 TTIE R E 4
RES  (b)17,460,00078 JT 5t B 15
—ERREFAEEHER: &
(c) 20,125,000 8 TTH — B EEF AN
FR(MFEE20) ©
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e PR R M

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 BEeRBESEEY(E)
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the e ResREaERmM:s  Hae kR

purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows:

THEEVERATSE:

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FE T T T
Cash and cash equivalents HWeEMREEEY 183,060 177,061
Bank overdraft (note 21) R1TE = (M E21) (3) =
183,057 177,061

RekReEEY IRHIERTE
A RE ISR IF SR RRE(EIA T
FIEHEE -

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and short-term bank deposit
were denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 March

MW3A318
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
HK$ BT 166,663 188,610
MOP SEL P 54,708 51,469
United States dollars (“US$”) =STe 44 23
Renminbi AR 1 =
221,416 240,102
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 17
RESERVES

RZA -~ RO EER B

(a)

Sy L

Share capital

Ordinary Shares, authorised:
At 1 April 2014
Increase in authorised

share capital (note i)

At 31 March 2015
Effect of shares subdivision (note iii)

At 31 March 2016

Ordinary shares, issued
and fully paid:

At 1 April 2014

Shares issued pursuant to the
Reorganisation (note i)

Shares issued pursuant to the
Capitalisation Issue (note i)

Shares issued under the
Share Offer (note i)

At 31 March 2015
Shares issued under the placing (note ii)

Effect of shares subdivision (note iii)

At 31 March 2016

(a)

EERCERE) :
201447518
Bk E A (TR

H2015%F3A31H
BORARF 2 (F i)
R2016F3A31H
EER(BBRIRAR):

R2014F4 518
BEEADETRM ()

BEEACEITERITRG (M)
BERHRED BTN (K
201543 [31H

BEE & B %R (M &)

R 17 75 40 /) 27 22 (B i)

20163 A31H

ZZ—XEFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

AR AR

Number of
shares HK$
RAEE BT
38,000,000 380,000
962,000,000 9,620,000
1,000,000,000 10,000,000
3,000,000,000 -
4,000,000,000 10,000,000
1 -
999 10
299,999,000 2,999,990
100,000,000 1,000,000
400,000,000 4,000,000
20,000,000 200,000
1,260,000,000 -
1,680,000,000 4,200,000
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

Share capital (Continued)

notes:

(i)

Prior to the completion of the group reorganisation
set out under the section “History and Corporate
Structure” in the Prospectus, which was completed
on 15 September 2014 (the “Reorganisation”),
companies now comprising the Group were
principally held under Sam Woo Group Limited (“SW
(BVI)"), of which the sole shareholder was Actiease
Assets Limited (“Actiease Assets”).

On 15 September 2014, Actiease Assets transferred
its entire interest in the issued share capital of SW
(BVI) to the Company by crediting the Company’s
existing one nil-paid share in issue as fully paid and
the Company allotting and issuing 999 additional
shares, credited as fully paid, to Actiease Assets.
Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the
Company has become the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group.

On 15 September 2014, pursuant to the written
resolution passed by the shareholders on 15
September 2014, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$10,000,000 by the creation of an additional
962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 16 October 2014, pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue (as mentioned in the Prospectus), the
Company issued additional 299,999,000 shares,
credited as fully paid, to Actiease Assets.

On 16 October 2014, pursuant to the Share Offer
(as mentioned in the Prospectus), the Company
issued a total 100,000,000 shares at a price of
HK$1.50 per share.

17
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BA - ROBEREE(E)

(@)

B (48)

Kz -

(i

RBREREIEL R4
XEBE|-—SFENE
BEEA(TEAH] TR
Al (£ 4 R2014F9A15
AEpk)  ASEEETE
A RJIEZE BSam Woo
Group Limited ([ = #0
BV ) #FE - i =F(BVI)
f) M — [i% 3 ZActiease
Assets Limited ([ Actiease
Assets]) e

M2014%49 A15H
Actiease Assetsi® i@ % —
BARBRBEBITRE
&SRR 9 ABRSIESE -
LA K 7N A B M Actiease
Assetsfit # [ 1785999
& A BRI E S B B -
1 H RN = FMBVNE 1T
A2 ERERET AR
ale EAEHE KA A
MAEREERFETSA
AR A E] -

MR2014F9A158 « B &
i% R R2014F9 158 @
BHEEDRZER  AAF
B V5 TE % 7N 38 18 48 7R B8 A1
962,000,0008% & % M 1&
0.01% 7T/ A% 15 380,000
7 7T # I0 £10,000,0007%8
5T o

7201445104168 -« R#&
BERbET(AEBERER)
KR B] [AlActiease Assets
REHN3277299,999,0008% A
RIIEZ BRI ©

R2014F108168 * R iE
BHEE(RBRER) -
N QAR & #R1.50% 7T &Y
{E1% 4 $£247100,000,000
AR5
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

(@)  Share capital (Continued)

notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

On 17 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued
20,000,000 shares by way of placing at HK$3.01
each. Proceeds of approximately HK$60,200,000
were received and the related transaction costs
of approximately HK$1,806,000 were netted off
with the proceeds. These shares rank pari passu
in all respect with the then existing shares in issue.
The excess over the par value of the shares were
credited to the share premium account.

With effective from 23 December 2015, each
share of the Company of HK$0.01 per share was
subdivided into 4 shares of HK$0.0025 per share.
The number of share capital increased accordingly.
Share capital is therefore presented on a post share
subdivision basis.

17 BRAE - RODBERHE(E)

(@) MA(#E)

Hiaz -

(i)

(i)

R2015%7A178 * XA
A AR & 75 R & %3.01
BT ERE R KRBT
20,000,0000% i 7 ° B UK
HY FT 1§ 3% 78 4960,200,000
Y& TT M AR B R B K AN 4
1,806,000/ 7T & 4 B ET 15
RIBHE  ZERNES
FHEERMNREE T
BN ZEARSHA - BH
B EE 2 BTy et ARG
S ER -

2015912 230 # + &
AEIERAEEIEITLZ
R IR B4R B E(E
0.00257% 7T 2 B 17 ° B A
HEEMEEEM - Btz
RN IR 1R ELAE 2 DIPEA o

N7
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND

RESERVES (Continued)

(b)  Share premium and reserves

At 31 March 2014
Profit for the year
Share issued pursuant to
the Capitalisation Issue
Share issued under
the Share Offer
Share issuance costs
Dividends relating to the year
ended 31 March 2014 paid
to the then shareholders

At 31 March 2015
Profit for the year
Issuance of placement shares
(note 17(a)(ii))
Final dividends relating
to the year ended
31 March 2015
Interim dividend relating
to the year ended
31 March 2016

At 31 March 2016

201443 A31H
REE
BIEE AR ET
BEITRNG
BERNHEESETRD

R BT AR

IRTERRREEEE
2014F3A31H L FE
(B B

R2015F3H31H
AREE 5 A
BITRERR
(B EE17(a)(i))
BBEZ2015%E3A31H
EFERRARE

BEBEE2016E3A31H
HEERTEHRKS

R2016%E3A31H

17 BRAE - ROBRERGEE(E)

b) KD EERFEE

Share Other Retained
premium reserves earnings Total
RDEE  HitREE REEF #Agt
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERT FTHT FTET FTHT
(note)
(Bt =)
- 10,500 208,219 218,719
- - 219,168 219,168
(3,000) - - (3,000)
149,000 - = 149,000
(10,107) - - (10,107)
- = (50,000 (50,000
135,893 10,500 377,387 523,780
- - 152,877 152,877
58,194 - - 58,194
- - (63,000) (63,000)
- - (21,000) (21,000)
194,087 10,500 446,264 650,851
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 17 BER - BROSEREE(E)
RESERVES (Continued)

(o)  Share premium and reserves (Continued) (o) PR RENERE (&)

note: Bet -

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference RNEEBRNHEMFEEEEEEAMN
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired BRI B A RNRAS R AR
pursuant to the Reorganisation over the nominal value A B AT EITAR R AE
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange BRZEE @ LARBRER2003F 5%
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of the KHEARKNEN =Mt EBSRE
nominal value of the share capital of Sam Woo Bore Pile N B EL = A A BR A B B AR AR
Foundation Limited and Sam Woo Engineering Equipment HELM  SREBRIRABRAK
Limited acquired over the nominal value of the share METH=MBVIRAEEMNZ
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant to = o

the reorganisation completed in 2003.

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 EEFES
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax EEHRBEAERELEHRBAGO N
liabilities were as follows: (N

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
Deferred income tax asset: EIEMBHEE .
Recoverable after more 1218 A & W =
than 12 months 131 209
Recoverable within 12 months 121E A A Ko - 24
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEEMSHEE
Payable or to be settled more B2 BB SR
than 12 months (42,045) (41,818)
Payable or to be settled R1218 B W sk 408
within 12 months (1,737) -
Deferred income tax liabilities, net BEMMSHEE—F58 (43,651) (41,585)
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 EEFTBH (&)
The movement on the deferred income tax account was ELEMEHER 28w T :
as follows:

As at 31 March

M3HA31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year RER (41,585) (28,244)
Recognised in the consolidated RErae 2E K EEFENER
statement of comprehensive (FFzE9)
income (note 9) (2,066) (13,341)
At end of the year RER (43,651) (41,585)
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and BEFEHEBEREEZS (TEE
assets, without taking into consideration the offsetting of B—#Ba iR NNEHESRE) !
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T~
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEEHAE
Accelerated
Unrealised tax
profit depreciation Total
RERGN MEBRBFRE @st
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FAET TAT FTET
At 1 April 2014 M2014F4 18 - 54,905 54,905
Recognised in the consolidated R4 2B Wzt & A #ER
statement of comprehensive
income — 13,295 13,295
At 31 March 2015 72015F3A31H - 68,200 68,200
Recognised in the consolidated ~ RiRA& 2 ERERNER
statement of comprehensive
income 1,737 12,641 14,378
Transfer from deferred HEEE P15 B & B
income tax assets (87) - (87)
At 31 March 2016 720163 A31H 1,700 80,841 82,541
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 EEFBH (&)
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTIS A E
Unrealised

profit Tax losses Total

REHR B HEEE #st

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

FHET FHET FAT

At 1 April 2014 M2014F4 A1 H 37 26,624 26,661

Recognised in the consolidated ~ R4R4 2 Mz R N FER
statement of comprehensive
income - (46) (46)

At 31 March 2015 R201543H31H 37 26,578 26,615
Recognised in the consolidated ~ M4&RA 2 H AR N ER
statement of comprehensive

income - 12,312 12,312
Transfer to deferred income BRERT

tax liabilities s aE (37) - (37)
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H - 38,890 38,890
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when BEMSHEERBEREAIEE
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current RH TN SRS EER
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities B ERaEHE  BREMSG
and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same ot £ [A) — % 75 B4 #E [ AR B S T LA
tax jurisdiction. The following amounts, determined after BiF -REERBEXRPHIINEHE
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet. (MYEREEHIEEEE) AT
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18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 18 EEFMBH (&)

19

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$2,129,000 (2015:
HK$2,118,000) that can be carried forward to offset
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no

expiry date.

EEFTEHAE
BIEPTSHEE

EEFTEHEE (&)

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FE T
(43,782) (41,818)
131 233
(43,651) (41,585)

i o A
EEBERRLEMSHEE - 12016
FIA31H  REERRERRTIE
&5 18 %) 52,129,000/ 7T (20154 :
2,118,000 7T) ' %S5 o 7] 4 &
RERERRERBWA - ZEH
HEELEREA -

fisi 5 A8 B8 A 7% F) 25 AT 35 8 R KB AR

3 RIR gL P S RO B IR

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS 19 ENEZRERRES - BstHE
K H fth P& AF KR

AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables (note)

e & 55 IA
FEfTIRE &

e B 5 RAMRE & B8
& R R IR B B A5 R IR (BT RE)
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As at 31 March

MN3HA31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FERT TAET
74,955 35,637
12,352 1,299
87,307 36,936
16,298 16,586
103,605 53,622
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19 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS 19 ENEZHERRES - BHRE

AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) & H fth &+ 7R E ()
note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other payables Hlat - ZERBITEAGEEAET
for constructing work-in-progress, wages, legal and B-IE8 ZAEAREEERNE
professional fees and transportation costs. BN AR FEST R IE R M E
F3RIE ©
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on ERNEZREREEZEAHNERR
invoice date was as follows: DHTWT

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
0 to 30 days 0&230H 67,645 25,586
31 to 60 days 31E60H 510 5,142
61 to 90 days 61£290H - 1,823
91 to 180 days 91£&180H 6,524 3,032
181 to 365 days 181£E365H 89 54
More than 365 days H#E365H 187 -
74,955 35,637
In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables REREEREBERA  BNRE
were classified as current liabilities. The ageing of the DERRDAE EBNRER E’\JEE
retention payables was as follows: BT
As at 31 March
A3H31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FET
Within 1 year —&FR 11,284 1,291
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF 1,068 6
Over 5 years R A T F - 2
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19

20

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, ACCRUALS
AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP R
Euro BRI
Singapore dollars Fronig ot

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for purpose in respect of
any claims, challenges and rejections from the Hong
Kong tax authority and/or Macau tax authority and costs
incurred.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014 (“the
Listing Date”), the balance shall be released and returned
to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh anniversary of the
Listing Date.

The balance, together with all bank interest accrued
therefrom, shall not be released and returned to the
director until and after all claims, if any, related to the
above have been concluded and fully settled and/or time-
barred in both Hong Kong and Macau.

19

20
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BRNEZHEARRES - BIFRKEA
R H e RROR (42)

R 5 OB R AR B K BREA 5R
BENAFEEE AT ES
5HE

As at 31 March

A3H31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
78,899 26,670
8,032 7,409
86 372
290 2,485
87,307 36,936

BN—-—EEEHR

BRERBERZE AQRESZIRE
FERA B AR BEBHEED
P&/ 8B PR %5 36 P9 A9 £F ) BB
R -BEHAREDL UARFIEENK
K HAAEEZTRITEFPTAT
20,000,000 7T, °

HWRRGDERRAEREREEZA
(BEN20145108168 (I EmHED)
BEERN - BRPIREHPIRE B
BHFPMES A AEER B BEHRE
MER AIBREBRETESEL
BFEE BAERNRE T ERB LA -

HREEREES A RTHER
EEMARRALEMEBER(WH)R
BERRMFETRERTEMER,
B AARRIR - TR B KR
BTE=S-
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21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 RTEXIRERK

As at 31 March

MA3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTHEx FHETT
Non-current EME
Obligations under finance leases MERES(T 66,713 54,038
Long-term bank loans EHISRITERK 54,160 68,472
120,873 122,510
Current mE
Bank overdraft |ITEX 3 =
Short-term bank loans RHERITER 35,660 110,974
Current portion of long-term R—FREHEEN
bank loans due for RHBRITERD
repayment within one year BN EREf 72,778 43,111
Long-term bank loans due BB AT BE R E KB R R
after one year which contain R—FERIHAEEN
repayment on demand clause RHRITER 13,930 17,455
Obligations under finance leases R—FRNEIHEEN
due for repayment within one year MEHREST 45,073 31,883
167,444 203,423

Total borrowings & RAREE 288,317 325,933
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21

BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21
(Continued)

(a)

The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

U

Bank overdraft and bank loans

In the consolidated balance sheet, bank
loans due for repayment after one year which
contain repayment on demand clause were
classified as current liabilities.

Based on the scheduled repayment terms set
out in the loan agreements and ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clause,
the maturity of bank overdraft and bank loans
would be as follows:

Bank overdraft on demand 7] B& S BSREERIRITE X

Within 1 year —F R
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

RITEXIRMER(E)

(@)

fERNBBRIFTRET

()

RITEX RRITEMN

RGERBEERBRA  #
BRIBER 2R EZRFRAR
—FRIMERERNRTE
ROBERRBEIME -

RIBE K 2B TEE
BN ARTEREM
] B B 2 SRAE IR IR R
& RITEXRRITER
RMZIEE R T

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET T T
3 —
108,438 154,085
44,521 38,651
23,569 47,276
176,531 240,012
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21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 RITBEZIRERE)
(Continued)
(@)  The maturity of borrowings was as follows (@ BHROINHBROT : (8)
(Continued):
(i) Obligations under finance leases (i) MEHEEZE
The maturity of obligations under finance lease MEREFTHORIEBER
would be as follows: U

As at 31 March

MN3HA31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET
Within 1 year —FR 45,073 31,883
Between 1 and 2 years —EMWE 38,606 29,318
Between 2 and 5 years “FHRHF 28,107 24,720

111,786 85,921
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21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 HBITEXIRERE)
(Continued)

(b) FN7E BEERRE AN DA 19 I = 40

(b) The weighted average interest rates were as follows:

T
As at 31 March
M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FExT THET
Short-term bank loans 2.4% 4.6%
Long-term bank loans RHIRITER 3.8% 4.0%
Obligations under finance leases Y& & & 1T 3.8% 3.8%
Bank overdraft RITEX 2.4% 1.3%
(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank overdraft () AEBERTEIZREFER
and borrowings were denominated in the following BHIATE| S HE -
currencies:
As at 31 March
MR3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
HKS BT 262,657 267,733
MOP JRPTEE - 58,200
Euro BT 25,660 =
288,317 325,933
(d)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings d) BRERFZERY  NEE®

EREREEREE A TERSE -
discounting is not significant. The fair values are AFEBRATERBRNSEZ
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. o

approximated their fair value as the impact of
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BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21
(Continued)

(e)

The obligation under finance leases are as follows:

Gross finance leases — minimum

lease payments
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

Future finance charges
on finance lease

Present value of obligations

under finance leases

MELERTE
—REBEEMNRK

—FR

—EMEF

ZERF

AEROBERE B

MEHEREMNRE

As at 31 March 2016, the finance leases are
secured by certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of HK$210,046,000 (2015:
HK$150,941,000) of certain subsidiaries and
guarantees provided by the Company.

e ISR

RITEZRMER(E)

) MEMESEEHIINT :

As at 31 March

R3A31H

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FTER TAET
48,499 34,631
40,408 30,869
28,953 25,299
117,860 90,799
(6,074) (4,878)
111,786 85,921

()  H2016%F3A31H  @EM
ELETHEBRARKEEES
210,046,000/ 7T (20154 :
150,941,000/ 7T) B9 & T H 4%
R B IERRRBARTRME
E{R o
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21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(90 The Group’s banking facilities are subject to annual

review and the utilised facilities are secured or

guaranteed by:

Secured
Unsecured

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BiEH
i

corporate guarantees jointly granted by certain
subsidiaries to the extent of HK$99,055,000
(2015: HK$79,055,000) as at 31 March 2016;

an unlimited guarantee given by certain
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
same);

certain plant and equipment of the Group as
detailed in notes 13(a) and (b);

an assignment of receivable over the proceeds
of a construction project as at 31 March 2016
(2015: same);

indemnities from subsidiaries for the issuance
of guarantees or performance bonds of the
Company as at 31 March 2016 (2015: same);

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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21 B|OTBEIREBRE)

(9 AEENRITEESFHE
1M BEECREEHRNRT
BIEEE AR

As at 31 March

MN3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEx TAET
179,868 216,217
108,449 109,716
288,317 325,933

(i

(i)

(iv)

#M2016%F3A31H * A
F @A T L ERE R
599,055,000/ 7T (2015
£ : 79,055,000/ 7T) HY
NAPER

R20163A31H ' &
FHi B A m IR A R RE
R (20154 : 48R) ;

REE 25T HM &R RE
(F R 5E13(a) (b))

MR2016F3HA31H » &
185 B AT /5 50 /Y FE s I8
(20154 : M)

R2016F3A318 - i B
ARFRARQRFTHAMNE
Rk B ARBIEL HRE
#3% (20154 : #8R) + &
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21 BANK OVERDRAFTS AND BORROWINGS 21 RITBEZIRERE)

(Continued)

(@ The Group’s banking facilities are subject to annual 0 AEBNRTEESFHHRE
review and the utilised facilities are secured or T8 BEBAEEANUT
guaranteed by: (Continued) RIBERBNIER : ()

(vi) fixed deposits amounting to HK$17,460,000 (vi) HM2015%F3HA31BER
for security of a revolving loan as at 31 March —ERREEZRERLHD
2015 which had been released during the year 17,460,000 7T € 877
ended 31 March 2016. HRERBEZE201653A31

HFEANEREL -

The Group did not breach any financial bank REBERE E2016F3A31H
covenant during the year ended 31 March 2016 IEFEIWEERTRNSHIRT
(2015: none). 249 (20155 « £&) o
22 COMMITMENTS 22 RIE
(a) Capital commitments (@) BEREE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the REEBEETNEBRELRD
year but not yet incurred is as follows: BEARMEZIAT -

As at 31 March

ASHS31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Plant and equipment A Ko 7% 3,511 15,737
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22

23

COMMITMENTS (Continued) 22

(b)  Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The future aggregate minimum lease rental
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office and
storage premises, and quarters for workers and
directors under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:
No later than 1 year TER—F
Later than 1 year and BR—F

no later than 5 years BABRASE

(c) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any
operating lease commitments as a lessor (2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 23

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has given
guarantees on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000
and HK$16,500,000 (2015: HK$67,305,000 and
HK$29,200,000), respectively, in respect of two
construction contracts (2015: two) of the Group in its
ordinary course of business. The performance bonds are
expected to be released in accordance with the terms of
the respective construction contracts.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5

AIE(E)
(b) KEHEAE1EAREA

RIRT A HEHE 2 HE B HE A
wE BFRBRREMEUR
BTIRESEENARREM
SR BEAR AT HRA
i

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET T T
4,012 5,048
2,771 5,010
6,783 10,058

) #KEHERE—(ERALEBAA

MA2016FE3H31H » A& B
FEAHB A BRI B EAEE
FAEAYE (201545 « ) -

HREE

MR2016F3AHA31H  KREBEHAE
BASBEHBXBHERNDMIE
(2015 : MIE) BEAHNELD
REVEL ER D B &£17,751,000
7 7T 16,500,000/ 7T (20154 :
67,305,000/ 7T }29,200,000/%
TL) o ZERANRETESBREBESE
EE N BIRRERR o
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24 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 24 FEBRERERME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) BRPTIS R AT @ ) B2 A4S & ZE 75 P
cash generated from operations: BIRESFHRMNEE
Year ended 31 March
BZ3ASIALEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax B P45 250 AL s 1 165,509 241,010
Depreciation of plant and W R R ETE
equipment 32,531 15,236
Loss/(gain) on disposal of plant i & # % & 5% 5 /9
and equipment EB(FE) 496 (1,763)
Write-off of plant and equipment #f $5 %, & 3% 652 274
Finance income I ON (2,816) (1,277)
Finance costs W% ER 11,674 14,367
208,046 267,847
Changes in working capital: EEESH
Increase in trade and retention EURE 5 FIE K
receivables REBEEM (93,587) (123,781)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, &4 - FE{I A &
prepayments and other H b jE W E
receivables WA (35 ) 2,609 (1,742)
Increase in amounts EREFEHIRR
due from customers for A AN
contract work (1,508) (4,299)
Decrease in amount due from  FE YR EFEE A 7] 7B
a related company B - 386
Increase in trade and retention BN E 5 TE &
payables RE &N 50,371 22,063
Decrease in accruals and other & 5 Z0 I8 M H {th & £+
payables RIBR D (288) (5,698)
Increase in amounts due to EREPEATIIR
customers for contract work S REHE N 21,838 6,834
Increase in amount due to JET—REFFRIAIL M
a director - 20,000
S
Net cash generated from KEEEFTSH 2558

operations - 187,481 181 ,_61 0
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24 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,

proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment

comprise:

24

Net book amount (note 13) BREFE (MTFE13)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of i M I ER Y
plant and equipment (note 6) (EB18) /FE (HeE6)
Non-cash proceeds from RE T 2 3%
exchange of certain plant FEIR® 1T RIE
and equipment (note 24(c)(i)) (Bt 5E24(c)(i))
Cash proceeds from sales of o R B R R Y
plant and equipment WRE TS FIE

Non-cash transactions

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, (i)
finance lease arrangement was entered into
by the Group for acquisition of plant and
equipment amounting to HK$74,843,000;
and (ii) plant and equipment amounting
to HK$1,080,000 was acquired through
exchange of certain plant and equipment at
a carrying amount of HK$846,000 with an
additional cash consideration of HK$730,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, (i)
finance lease arrangement was entered into
by the Group for acquisition of plant and
equipment amounting to HK$63,788,000; and
(i) plant and equipment of HK$3,274,000 was
reclassified to contracting work-in-progress
without any cash paid.
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RERERERWE (E)

(o)

(©)

rL'/\
IS

EE/AL%%':P ﬁg*&

PN R ERPTSRIR B

Year ended 31 March

BZE3ASIBLEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FATT
846 742
(496) 1,763
(350) =
- 2,505
FRERH

(i)

(i

M & E2016E3H31H
LEFEE - ((FNEEHEE
74,843,000/ JT Y #

BB URMERER
k¢ R (i) 1,080,000 7T
RO N 524 T B B Rk
HEETE}%B% 0007 JT Y

A T R e LA R BB AN
I8 4 K {E730,00078 7t M
U B -

REE201543A31H
FFEE  (FNEEHEE
63,788,000/ JT K 1 %k
LEBIIUMEHEER
BE R (i) 8,274,000 7T
R REREET D BEE
FREANIRE  ERLE
X EMBRE -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee;
to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject to common control or joint
Related parties may be individuals or other

to control,

exposure, or rights,

control.
entities.

(@) The directors of the Company are of the view that
the following companies were related parties that

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BEBALTEE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
2I9RBA £ &

Asian Giant Limited

Asian Giant Limited
Cheer Crown Limited

EBHERALF
Cheer Profit International Enterprise Limited
ENBFECEFRAG

Cheer Wealth International Development Limited

ERERERARAA

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAGCEBRAR
Healthy World Investment Limited

BEREBRAF

Long Ascent Development Limited

RAZERER AR
Redland Precast Concrete Products Limited

TRBARERLERERAA
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25 BBALXRS

BAHE A LR B R IES] - KRS
W&ﬁﬁﬁTﬂE@Tﬁw&éﬁ
TEENNALTEERZE NN
AL AERESXEZEEEZ2ERR
B 77 1 A] & [0 3R 1 [ i Sk HE A R A
TAMAEHRKRETNENTR
EREEFMREFOAL - X KR
*MT% 2B A IR S
AL - B A LRI S EASEA

Eﬁ?ﬁ"

@ ARAEFRERR  THNRAR
T HEAREEHETTR HRBULE
BRESOBERAL

Relationship with the Group
HEAEENER

Director of the Company
RRARES
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group
HASEETESF2EHEFNBB LR
A related company beneficially wholly owned
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming
HERALEETEEREEN B QA
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their
family member
HAEBETESFENARKKEZEREAN
) /N
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their
family member
HAEBETEEMNARGKNELEREN
E2): /NG|
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group and their
family member
HAEBETEENARGKKNELEREN
E2):NG|
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group
HAKBETEE2EREN B QA
A related company wholly owned by certain
directors of the Group
HAKRBETEE2EREN @A QA =
A related company wholly owned by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming "

BRI A
it |
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 25 BBALRE (&)
(b) Transactions b) X5

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties at

BRI R A MR R B B 0 P
WEES - NEEHEBER AL
BETHENIRFKETATR

terms mutually agreed by both parties:

5

Year ended 31 March

BZ3ASIALEE
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TET FHET
Continuing transactions FEXS
Paid to related parties: SR A T RE
Rental expenses to Cheer INTRHERRFMN
Crown Limited (note i) M 7 s (3T 2,160 2,040
Rental expenses to East Ascent IRNTRAGEER AR
Enterprise Limited (note ii) & kX (B &) 46 46
Rental expenses to Cheer Profit I TEFBEREE
International Enterprise BERARMES
Limited (note i) B 2 (M &ii) 46 46
Rental expenses to Long Ascent XN FRAZLRER AR
Development Limited (note ii) e 73X (K aEi) 600 600
Rental expenses to Cheer I FERBERER
Wealth International BERARMAS
Development Limited (note ii) F sz (BT &) 875 875
Rental expenses to IHRBEREERA A
Healthy World Investment MY
Limited (note i) (P %Eii) 600 600
Expense payable to ERSEBEALEX:
a related party:
Interest expense payable B —RESFIE
to a director (note iii) 32 (Hft #iii) 434 125
Discontinued transactions BERIUERS
Received from related parties: T B A X708 :
Reimbursement of administrative & B e B &R 5 £+
expenses from Redland EmBRARN
Precast Concrete Products THA X ME (I Fiv)
Limited (note iv) - 58
Reimbursement of staff costs R B Asian Giant Limited#)
from Asian Giant Limited 8 TARARE (M Ev)
(note iv) - 484
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Transactions

note i:

note ii:

note iii:

note iv:

Rental expenses for storage of machinery and
equipment are based on terms pursuant to the
tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the
relevant parties.

Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are based
on terms pursuant to the tenancy agreements as
mutually agreed by the relevant parties.

Interest expense was payable to a director, Mr.
Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount due to a
director (note 25(d)).

Reimbursements of staff costs and administrative
expenses were charged at cost.

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (executive and

non-executive) of the Group. The compensation

paid o

r payable to key management for employee

services is disclosed in note 28(a).

25 BEMALTXZS (&)

(b)

X5 (%)

Bt

B izii -

B atiii -

Kiativ -

oo A

FTEE

R I B 2R
MBEEAXTIERE
ME T ARBENE
HIEY 15K

REESEEENHES
MXTIERNEBRET
H 17 13 T & AR 4D A 16k

o
N

FMERZTBEN—
HEEREMENE
=R %&£ (K
25(d)) °

BTIRARITHAX
70 (B R B AN UGB ©

NSRS

TRERAEBBEAREES
(BT RIEBTT) - SLEE R
ENKENTEIEEEAERDN
N B TE28(a) B R -
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Balance — non-trade

BN —-—REERE:
S H% 87 55 A& (B EE20)

Payable to a director:
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 20)

26 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 26

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is
the ultimate holding company of the Group, which is a
company indirectly owned by a discretionary trust, the
beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED | =2 5@ AR A 5
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25 BBMALTXZS (Z)

(d #H#HR-FEH

As at 31 March

A3HS31H
2016 2015
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FET FE T
20,559 20,125

BRRERAR

al

& 12 R ASilver Bright Holdings
Limited (— 7 22 8 5 2 8% & 51 T
BB RE]) RARBRREIZERA
Al ZARHUREBH LT AT
AR EETEEES -
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27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 27 ARAFMEEEBRREEED
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
M aE FHET FAETT
ASSETS =3
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRMIEE 5,927 5,927
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TE IR - 132
Amount due from a subsidiary fE W — S B9 /8 2 B FOB 140,187 =
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREZFEY 67,058 133,987
207,245 134,119
Total assets EEH#E 213,172 140,046
EQUITY X
Capital and reserve EXRf#HE
Share capital & A< 4,200 4,000
Reserves {1 (a) 208,966 118,480
Total equity B 213,166 122,480
LIABILITIES g8&
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary &+ — &R XM & A 7 ZE - 17,263
Accruals JESTFR 5 303
Income tax payable FERTETIS L 1 =
Total liabilities BEAE 6 17,566
Total equity and liabilities EERAELEHE 213,172 140,046
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the RARKEEBBEREN20165F6H
Board of Directors on 27 June 2016 and were signed on 27H BEZGHE WHTIAL
its behalf. RERE -
s
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
24 #3
Director
BEF
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e PR R M

27 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 27 APRFMEEEBREHEERD

THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
note (a): Kit(a) -
Reserve movement of the Company KABNEHERE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Other retained
premium reserve earnings Total
(R ER)
R EE Hitr ke REEF @t
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
AT THL AT AT
At 31 March 2014 #2014454 818 - - (10,127) (10,127)
Loss for the year rEEHR - - (13,213) (13,213)
Surplus arising on issue of shares AR E —EH &2 "R H
in exchange for shares MBETRHEEDN
in a subsidiary B - 5,927 - 5,927
Share issued pursuant to BEERET
the Capitalisation Issue B #1Tkn (3,000) - - (3,000)
Share issued under Share Offer BRERHEEZETRN 149,000 - - 149,000
Share issuance costs 17 B AT R AR (10,107) - - (10,107)
At 31 March 2015 7201543318 135,893 5,927 (23,340) 118,480
Profit for the year AEE RN - - 116,292 116,292
Issuance of placement shares BORERR (M17()
(note 17(a)) 58,194 - - 58,194
Final dividends relating to the year ~ A B # £201563A31H
ended 31 March 2015 EEERMRBRE - - (63,000) (63,000)
Interim dividend relating to the year 7 i # £2016%3A31H
ended 31 March 2016 EFEENFHES - - (21,000) (21,000)
At 31 March 2016 201663 H31H 194,087 5,927 8,952 208,966

R A Y B At R 6 R AT AR = AN
BV EEFEBBANRE[BRR
BREEMBITHRARENEZSE -

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange thereof.
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EEEMNRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments @ EZFMe
The remuneration of each director of the Company MeE7FTiIEEEsT A8 TR A
which were included in the staff costs as disclosed MAATRSESHE S 0
in note 7 is set out below: e

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZ201653R3ALEE
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary ~ Directors’  to pension

Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total
Exm
Birecta

e ¢  BETL  ETEE  FHNHR @it

HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER TER TER iR

Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Lau Chun Ming * SRR - 797 - 643 - 1,440
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok * HiRE - 840 - 600 18 1,458
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARF x4 - 840 - 600 18 1,458
Ms. Leung Lai So PEHLT - 456 - 324 - 780
Independent non-executive B F#1T

directors B
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, T EHE

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum REREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBEAE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 - 2,167 36 5,856
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Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Executive directors BTE=s
Mr. Lau Chun Ming * BRI EE
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok * BIRE % £
Mr. Lau Chun Ka IRF %k
Ms. Leung Lai So REEHLT

Independent non-executive %3 317
directors B

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, T2 %R
Roderick

Mr. Chu Tak Sum REREE
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Armold EXBRE

L Chairman
* Chief Executive Officer

28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Notes to The Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

28 EEEMNRERE)

@ EZEEME(#E)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HZ201553A38 L5 E

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary Directors” 1o pension
Fees Salaries bonus Quarters scheme Total

=30

RINEEE
we e BMBRL  E3EE  ELOER &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
THEL THETL THL TEL TEL TET
- 767 = 643 = 1,410
- 810 - 600 18 1,428
- 810 - 600 18 1,428
- 426 - 324 - 750
130 - - - - 130
130 - - - - 130
130 - - - - 130
390 2,813 - 2,167 36 5,406

G S

o TRARE
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the
companies now comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office; (i)
received or paid emoluments in respect of services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking; or
(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
(2015: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2015: same).

=2 AFFH | ANNUAL REPORT 2016

e P RRME

28 EEEMNRERE)

BEEMe (F)

LM EERFESERAE
ERER " XERAEEET
BERBMESZAANKE I
M -

RE E2016F3A831H L FE
N BEXARFTESORER
B8 (7 W B 3k 2 A E AT Bl &
(st B BB BN 7 gl H T B
NEFTAEE B R UER
TAEAIENE ¢ k(i) R EE A
BWREFEMIE (20154 - 48
@) e

BEENXRS  THHREHNE
Rz

B4R A B 75 3R R M sE25 AT
BEN RERLFEREMAE
M BEARRER—FETL
BARRESEESHERE
EAESBRARRIEKERH
MEARD KHEREHTGFE
(20154 : FHRA) °
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Five Year Financial Summary

L EHBERE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERARAETRFEEND FIEEE
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as REE BRNEEZRBMAOT o
follows.

Year ended 31 March

HE3AMABLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$ 000

Results E FTET FTET FET T FET
Revenue WA 1,061,482 851,285 492,734 375,147 98,428
Gross Profit EH 210,012 306,245 165,634 102,590 32,692
Profit before income tax B BT 15 B B i A 165,509 241,010 129,895 68,271 25,996
Income tax expense FrEfmx (12,632) (21,842) (2,809) (12,649) (1,788)
Profit for the year FEEA 152,877 219,168 127,086 55,622 24,208

As at 31 March
MW3H31H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THER TET THT FHET FAT

Assets BE

Non-current assets ERBEE 608,314 513,389 403,802 315,897 206,978
Current assets MEEE 546,640 472,831 223,670 138,951 61,852
Total assets BEHE 1,154,954 086,220 627,472 454,848 268,830
Liabilities a8E

Non-current liabilities EREEaE 185,214 184,453 69,652 85,481 48,151
Current liabilities REBAEE 314,689 273,987 339,101 227,734 134,668
Total liabilities BERRE 499,903 458,440 408,753 313,215 182,819
Total equity DB 655,051 527,780 218,719 141,633 86,011
Note: K&t -

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of the NEEBE EE E20124F « 2013F k20143 A

three years ended 31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014 and of the assets, THIE=EFE&EFENEE FEH KN2012
equity and liabilities as at 31 March 2012, 2013 and 2014 have been F - 2013F K2014F3A31THMEE * #Em
extracted from the Prospectus. FEEREREERRERE -

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial st B N T KA R AR B T TR R A — 5T
statements. 5 e
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